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In this Annual Report on Form 10-K (“Form 10-K")nless the context indicates otherwise, the termiséi\’ “the Company,” “we,”
“us,” and “our” refer to Mitek Systems, Inc., a Belare corporation.

IMPORTANT NOTE ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Form 10-K, contains “forward-looking statengrthat involve risks and uncertainties, as welaasumptions that, if they never
materialize or prove incorrect, could cause ouultego differ materially and adversely from thesgressed or implied by such forward-
looking statements. The forward-looking statemaméscontained principally in Item 1—“Business, nitd. A—"Risk Factors” and Item 7—
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Finan€ahdition and Results of Operations” but appeasubhout this Form 10-K. Forward-
looking statements may include, but are not limitgdstatements relating to our outlook or expéatatfor earnings, revenues, expenses, asset
quality or other future financial or business parfance, strategies, expectations, or business getsspr the impact of legal, regulatory or
supervisory matters on our business, results ofadip@s or financial condition. Specifically, forveelooking statements may include statem
relating to our future business prospects, reveimeeme and financial condition.

Forward-looking statements can be identified byube of words such as “estimate,” “plan,” “projéttorecast,” “intend,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “believe,” “seek,” “target” or simileexpressions. Forward-looking statements reflacjudgment based on currently available
information and involve a number of risks and uteieties that could cause actual results to diffaterially from those described in the
forward-looking statements.

In addition to those factors discussed under Itefw2'Risk Factors”,important factors could cause actual results tiedihaterially fron
our expectations. These factors include, but atdimded to:
» adverse economic conditior
» general decreases in demand for our products andes;
» changes in timing of introducing new products itite market
* intense competition (including entry of new comfmet), including among competitors with substahtigteater resources than 1
» increased or adverse federal, state and local gmart regulation
* inadequate capita
e unexpected cost
* revenues and net income lower than foreca:
» litigation;
» the possible fluctuation and volatility of operatiresults and financial conditior
* inability to carry out our marketing and sales glteend
» the loss of key employees and executi'

All forward-looking statements included in this Roi0-K speak only as of the date of this Form 18rd you are cautioned not to place
undue reliance on any such forward-looking statamdfxcept as required by law, we undertake nagyabibn to publicly update or release any
revisions to these forward-looking statements fleceany events or circumstances after the dathisfForm 10-K or to reflect the occurrence
of unanticipated events. The above list is notridezl to be exhaustive and there may be other fattat could preclude us from realizing the

predictions made in the forward-looking statemews.operate in a continually changing businessrenwient and new factors emerge from
time to time. We cannot predict such factors oessshe impact, if any, of such factors on ourrfaia position or results of operations.

(i)
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
Overview

Mitek Systems, Inc. is engaged in the developrsaié and service of its proprietary software sohgirelated to mobile imaging
solutions and intelligent character recognitiontwafe.

We have historically provided financial institut®with advanced imaging and analytics softwareutbenticate and extract data from
imaged checks and other documents. Currently, wajplying our patented technology in image coiwacind intelligent data extraction to
enter the market for mobile financial and busirsggglications. Our technology for extracting datanfrany photo taken using camera-equipped
smartphones and tablets enables the developmennetimer friendly applications that use the carasra keyboard to enter data and comg
transactions. Users take a picture of the doculaethtour products do the rest—correcting image distg extracting relevant data, routing
images to their desired location, and processigstictions through users’ financial institutions.

Our Mobile Deposi® product is a software application that allows usenemotely deposit a check using their smartpluameera. As of
September 30, 2011, 161 financial institutionsiuding 7 of the top 10 U.S. retail banks and payhfiacilitating companies, have signed
agreements to depldyiobile Deposi®® Other mobile applications we offer inclutiobile Photo Bill Pay™a mobile bill paying application
that allows users to pay their bills using theirstphone camer&jobile ACH Enroliment™an application that enables consumers to enroll
their checking accounts as funding sources for fagiayments by taking photos of blank checks wigirtsmartphone$Jlobile Balance
Transfer™ a credit card shopping application that allows er tis transfer an existing balance by capturingrage of their current statement,
Mobile Imaging Cloud™our mobile imaging platform that allows users tptoae, extract and route information containedasuiments and
can be used to create camera-based mobile solulitoisle Receip® a receipt archival and expense report applicadodMobile Phax® a
mobile document faxing application using our prefaiy technology. Our mobile applications suppbntajor smartphone operating systems,
including the iPhoneé , Androiel , and Blackbefry

We market and sell our mobile solutions throughnoigh partners or directly to enterprise customadsendusers who typically purcha:
licenses based on the number of transactions acsblers that use our mobile applications. Our headdlutions are often embedded in other
mobile banking or enterprise applications develdpgtanks or their partners, and marketed undér olen proprietary brands. During the
past fiscal year, we began developing new solutionthe insurance market as well as leveragetaiform to create custom mobile imaging
solutions. All of our mobile imaging solutions user proprietary technology to capture and read fiata photos of documents taken using
camera-equipped smartphones and tablets.

We are headquartered in San Diego, California ametuwncorporated in the state of Delaware on Mayl286.

Product and Technology Overview

Our family of products consists of mobile imagirgdusions and intelligent character recognition waite provided as development
toolkits. During the fiscal year ended September2B11, we had one operating segment, documentipagessing and image analytics,
based on our product and service offerings thabuséntelligent character recognition and docuntagtture technology.

Our proprietary recognition software is used told@ahe automation of costly, labor-intensive bassfunctions. We process images of
documents in many ways, including quality analyisigge repair, document identification and theation of hand-printed and machine-
printed text. Our capabilities can be deployed on
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any back office, industrial or desktop scanneQromobile devices that have a camera, to optinmzkextract data from any scanned or
photographed check, invoice or other financial doent, as well as any other business form. Our d¢iggeinclude mobile document capture,
image repair and optimization, optical characteognition (“OCR”) and intelligent character recatpm (“ICR”), dynamic data finding on any
document or check, distributed capture, courtesyuarnrecognition and legal amount recognition, emage analysis of signatures.

Our proprietary, patented technology, known as IBRIROVE® , is able to read and extract data fromoaigpbf any document taken by a
smartphone or tablet camera, in essence turningiheee and tablet cameras into virtual scanningces.

IMagePROVE® is a unique form of mobile document aegsoftware that combines our core recognitiohrietogy with advanced
mobile image processing capabilities that transfarfour-color photograph of a document into a digihage that is equivalent in size,
resolution and quality to documents scanned wétitional office copiers and fax machines. Unlikarmed documents, mobile photograph
documents captured by smartphones and tabletxposed to variable lighting conditions, various lasgand focal distance. Raw photos of
documents taken by a smartphone or tablet may ba ahknown size and resolution from the origiraduiment and are often geometrically
distorted, skewed or warped. As a result, the “rawsbile document image is virtually unusable. IMBBOVE® uses advanced algorithms
designed to identify and correct geometric andogpiiistortions and automatically correct each neotbbocument image. Using IMagePROVE
®, we have created mobile imaging solutions foraugr acquisition and retention that enable globalriesses to create mobile applications
that utilize camera-equipped smartphones, incluthiegPhone , Android , and BlackBefy , and tafletcluding the iPaé

The majority of our revenue in the fiscal yearsezh@eptember 30, 2011 and 2010 was generated ahile Deposit® product, which
we sell to customers in the financial services stdu Our other mobile imaging solutions, includiMigbile Photo Bill Pay™, Mobile ACH™,
Mobile Balance Transfer™, and Mobile Imaging Cloudidve been recently announced and are in theai@iyphase with certain custome
This year, we also began offering a suite of moinilaging solutions for the insurance industry. didition to these vertical solution suites, we
create custom mobile imaging solutions for orgaiize across industries.

Mobile Imaging Solutions

Our mobile banking suite includes Mobile Dep@sitMagbile Photo Bill Pay™, Mobile ACH™ and Mobile Balee Transfer™. We
market and sell Mobile Deposit primarily throughesapartnerships with leading system integratordtfe financial services industry
including Fiserv, Inc., Fidelity National Informati Services, Inc., NCR Corporation, Jack Henry &d@sates, Inc., Wausau Financial
Systems, Inc., BankServ, RDM Corporation, J&B Saftsvinc., Bluepoint Solutions, Inc., and otherse Bther solutions in our mobile bank
suite are primarily sold directly to enterprisetomsers and end-users.

Mobile Deposi®

As of September 30, 2011, our Mobile Dep6sit praodsibeing used by 7 of the top 10 banks and nuaseother community banks and
credit unions. This was our first smartphone appion to utilize our mobile imaging analytics arattprn recognition software to allow banks
to accept check deposits via photos of checks tak#tncamera-equipped smartphones and tablets. IMBlgEposit® allows users to make
deposits by photographing the front and back dfeck and submitting the item electronically to theink from their smartphone or tablet. We
began to recognize revenue related to Mobile Deépasithe third fiscal quarter of 2009, and receiypedent #7,778,497 in August, 2010, for
the Method and Systems for Mobile Image CaptureRmodessing of Checks.

2
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Mobile Photo Bill Pay™

In October 2010, we announced Mobile Photo Bill Payhich provides a new level of service and coneroé for customers who want
to pay bills using their mobile device. Mobile Poi@&ill Pay™ connects to online bill pay systems atidws users to pay bills by taking
pictures of their bills with their smartphone oblet camera. The core technology of Mobile PhotbBay™ makes this possible by correcting
image distortion, reading relevant data and prargghe transactions through the users’ banks.pEyenent is made electronically by debiting
the users account. With Mobile Photo Bill Pay™,rasen submit electronic payments from their snientges or tablets without having to w
checks, buy stamps, visit a payment location oneis® their personal computers.

Mobile ACH™ Enrollment

In March 2011, we announced Mobile ACH™ Enrollmemich makes it convenient and easy for customeuséothe camera on their
smartphone or tablet to set up an auto debit fiogir bank account and enable electronic funds fleansinstead of manual processes like
filling out forms or providing a blank check, MobiIACH™ Enroliment allows customers to simply takgicture of a check in order to enroll.

Mobile Balance Transfer™

In September 2011, we announced Mobile BalancesTfealt, a simple, cost effective way for financiatitutions to acquire new credit
card customers and new balances. Upon openingtiieation, consumers are prompted to take a pbbtoeir current credit card statement
with their smartphone or tablet. Mobile Balanceni&fa@r™ accurately and securely converts the phapdgd data and sends it to the banks’
existing scoring systems. If the customer qualifieey are immediately extended a competitive limddransfer offer. The customer can accept
the offer with a single touch of their device kegipand the bank automatically transfers the balamncesets up the new credit card account.

Mobile Imaging Cloud™

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, we announttegdlavailability of Mobile Imaging Cloud™, which miaires, extracts and routes
information contained in documents and can be tsedeate camera-based mobile solutions that siynpié user experience for tasks such as
receipt management and expense reporting, obtaingugance quotations, flexible spending accountlvarsements and submitting
prescriptions. This product provides mobile appgi@adevelopers, system integrators and businegites fast, cost-effective way to create
smartphone and tablet applications that use theaas an input method for a wide variety of tabkgek’s Mobile Imaging Cloud™
currently works with checks, bills, receipts, véailentification numbers, U.S. driver’s licenseslansurance cards, and can be configured to
handle virtually any document.

Mobile Receip® and Mobile Ph&x

During fiscal 2009, we launched Mobile Recdipt &abile Phax® . Mobile Receigt is designed to contieetphoto of a receipt taken
with a smartphone or tablet into a high quality g@and with a single touch, converts the dataanpoofessional looking expense report.
Mobile Phax® is designed to allow a user to takéa@t@of any letter sized document or page withrteeiartphone or tablet and send it as a
PDF to any email address or fax machine.

Intelligent Character Recognition Software Products

Our intelligent character recognition toolkits anarketed under the brand ImageNet and includeta stiproducts that leverage our
proprietary intelligent character recognition ardadextraction software engines.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011, we announaacdenterprise platform called MitekONE™ that addessall deposit types: remote
deposit capture, self-service, back office che@netng and Mobile Deposit . This product allowsafigial institutions to offer a quality user
experience across channels. MitetkONE™ gives
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financial institutions the ability to better manatgposits by identifying types of checks so thay apply appropriate business rules for pers
and business checks versus other payment typdsasunoney orders and cashier checks. MitekONE @Wareced duplicate detection is a
fraud-management mechanism that improves theabilitinancial institutions to detect attempted licgte remote deposits of the same check
both within banks and across institutions. Thisatality utilizes our ImageNet ICR technology.

ImageNe®

ImageNet® products are designed to provide a higdl lef accuracy in remittance processing, proadeyiosit and lock box processing
applications. These products are used to reduceah&abor by automatically extracting amounts amating information from checks and
distinguishing between common document types, ssgbersonal and business checks, substitute ctprekauthorized drafts and other
document types specified by customers. We sellmageNet® suite of products to our channel partnérs resell them as integrated
components of their solutions and services.

FraudProtect®

FraudProtec® Systems is a comprehensive, autorsafedare application designed to allow banks tedethe most common forms of
check fraud from forged signatures and countecfegtcks, as well as the detection of pre-authorizafts and payee name alterations.

Intellectual Property

Our success depends significantly upon our praasieechnology. We attempt to protect our intelle¢property rights primarily throug
copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, employedharttiparty nondisclosure agreements and othesuarea. If we are unable to protect our
intellectual property or infringe intellectual prexy of a third party, our operating results cobdédharmed.

As of September 30, 2011, we had 12 issued paa@tsve had 7 national and international pendingmiapplications. We have 23
registered trademarks and will continue to evaltiageregistration of additional trademarks as appate. We claim common law protection
for, and may seek to register, other trademarkadtition, we generally enter into confidentiabtgreements with our employees.

Sales and Marketing

We market our products and services primarily tgfoahannel partners as well as through our intediiadct sales organization. We he¢
a marketing group that develops corporate and mtagarketing strategies and executes marketingsplattn support of external resources as
needed. We employ a technically oriented salefaith management assistance to identify the nekdsisting and prospective customers.
Our sales strategy concentrates on OEMSs, systemgrators, distributors, and software solution canips that we believe are key users and
designers of automated document processing systerngh performance, large volume applicationsadidition to financial institutions that
are positioning themselves in the emerging moldjgtere and remote data capture market. In addiversell and support our products thro
foreign resellers. The sales process is supposteddsoad range of marketing programs, includiagérshows, direct marketing, public
relations and advertising.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, earded 11% of our revenues from a direct customdr22% from a channel partner.
For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2010, eaded 12%, 11% and 10% of our revenues from tiféerent channel partners. During
most quarterly periods in fiscal year 2011 and 2@&0es of licenses to one or two channel partm@ve comprised a significant part of our
revenue. This is attributable to the timing of maks or purchases of licenses and does not refirasipendence on any one channel partner.
If we were to lose a channel partner relationshigpdo not believe such a loss would adversely

4
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affect our operations because either we or anatiemnel partner could sell our products directl{hend-user. However, we or other channel
partners must establish a relationship with suchweser, which could take time to develop, if it dipps at all.

International sales accounted for approximately B2 10% of our total revenue for the fiscal yearded September 30, 2011 and 2
respectively. We sell our products in U.S. curreanly.

Competition

Our mobile products address a new market for tieeofismartphone and tablet cameras and therefoeeefaerging competition primar
from start-up ventures. We believe our productsaaneng the first smartphone and tablet solutiortheif kind, but we anticipate growing
competition as the market matures.

The market for document image processing prodsdtgeénsely competitive, subject to rapid changg significantly affected by new
product introductions and other market activitiégdustry participants. We face direct and indire@mpetition from a broad range of
competitors who offer a variety of products anduiohs to our current and potential customers. @incipal competition comes from:

(i) customer developed solutions; (i) direct conitpen from companies offering automated documentpssing systems; (iii) companies
offering competing technologies capable of recaggihand-printed and cursive characters; and (ngctl competition from companies
offering check imaging systems to banks.

It is also possible that we will face competitioarh participants new to the industry. Moreoverthesmarket for automated document
processing, ICR, check imaging and fraud detedaftware develops, a number of companies with Bagamitly greater resources than we h
could attempt to enter or increase their presemoaii industry, either independently or by acqugjrar forming strategic alliances with our
competitors, or otherwise increase their focushenimdustry. In addition, current and potential petitors have established or may establish
cooperative relationships among themselves or thitll parties to increase the ability of their puots to address the needs of our current and
potential customers.

Our products are compliant with Service-Orientedhecture standards and compete, to various degnéth products produced by a
number of substantial competitors. Competition agnproduct providers in this market generally foause price, accuracy, reliability and
technical support. We believe our primary compegitidvantages in this market are: (i) recognitioccueacy with regard to hand-printed
characters; (ii) flexibility resulting from the dity of our products to operate in several Micrd3®eb Services environments; (iii) scalability;
and (iv) an architectural software design thatvei@ur products to be more readily modified, im@@with added functionality and configui
for new products, thereby allowing our softwardéoeasily upgraded. Despite these advantages, Meageompetitors have existed longer
and have far greater financial resources and inglesnhnections than we have.

Increased competition may result in price reductjorduced gross margins and loss of market shayeof which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, operating resadtdinancial condition.

Maintenance and Support

Following the installation of our software at a ttuser site, we provide ongoing software supportises to assist our customers with
operating the systems. We have an internal custeereice department that handles installation aathtenance requirements. The majority of
inquiries are handled by telephone and electromiit. rARor more complicated issues, our staff, aftestomer consent, can log on to our
customers’ systems remotely. We maintain our custehsoftware largely through releases that coritaprovements and incremental
additions. Nearly all of our customers purchase-postract support from us. These services argrafgiant source of our recurring revenue
and they are typically contracted on an annualsbasi
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Customers with maintenance coverage receive saftwaglates from us on an if-and-when-available badis Foreign distributors
generally provide customer training, service angpsut for the products they sell. Additionally, qanoducts are supported internationally by
distributors. Technical support is provided by pdlene as well as technical visits if necessarydufitaon to those previously mentioned.

We believe that as the installed base of our prisdgiows and as customers purchase additional esngpitary products, revenue from
professional services will increase and the sofvsaipport function will become a larger sourceeaiurring revenues. Maintenance and suf
service fees are deferred and recognized as inowarethe contract period on a straight-line baS@sts incurred by us to supply maintenance
and support services are charged to cost of regeamiacurred.

Research and Development

Typically, our software products are developedrimadly. We also purchase or license intellectualgrty rights. We believe that our
future success depends in part on our ability tontaen and improve our core technologies, enhameeeristing products and develop new
products that meet an expanding range of custoaggiirements. We do not believe we are materialpeddent upon licenses or other
agreements with third parties for the developmémiuo products.

Internal research and development allows us to taiaicloser technical control over our products gives us the freedom to designate
which modifications and enhancements are most itapband when they should be implemented. We démiszvative solutions to automated
character processing problems, such as the enhantamd improvement of degraded images, and thelal@went of user-manipulated tools
to aid in document image processing. We intendkpaed our existing product offerings and to introelmew document image processing
software solutions. In the development of new potsland enhancements to existing products, we wseven tools extensively. We perform
all quality assurance and develop documentatiarmadly. We strive to become informed at the estlpossible time about changing usage
patterns and hardware advances that may affesta@tdesign. We intend to continue to support itrgugandard operating environments.

Our team of specialists in recognition algorithsaftware engineering, user interface design, prodocumentation and quality
improvement is responsible for maintaining and ewireg the performance, quality and usability ofadlbur products. In addition to research
and development, our engineering staff providesocusr technical support on an as-needed basis alithgechnical sales support.

In order to improve the accuracy of our documerggmprocessing products, we devote significantarebeand development resource
enhance our core technology, including our databésgllions of character images that are usedtairi” the neural network software that
forms the core of our ICR engine. In addition, veedrexpanded our research and development tagkdude pre- and post-processing of data
subject to automated processing.

Our research and development organization incledée/are engineers and scientists, some of whora hdvanced degrees, as well as
additional personnel in product management, quaburance and client services. We balance ouneamng resources between development
of OCR/ICR and Mobile Image Analytics technologyapplications development. All of our software ieegrs are involved in applications
development, including OCR/ICR research and devety of our Mobile Imaging Platforms and Producithwsolutions for Mobile Check
Payments, Mobile Bill Pay, Mobile Capture, Data @ap, Form Identification, real-time Image Qualkpalysis and Fraud Detection and
Signatures, quality assurance, and customer sergiog support.

Our research and development expenses for the gadesl September 30, 2011 and 2010 were $2,996(10%92,002,399, respectively.
We expect research and development expense t@serkiring fiscal year 2012 as we continue to exXpam research and product
development efforts.
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Employees and Labor Relations

As of September 30, 2011, we had 32 full-time erygés, consisting of 11 in sales and marketingnI®search and development,
product management, network administration and sd@md 3 in finance, administration and other cé@s. In addition, we engaged various
consultants in the area of research and developmerduct development and marketing during theafigear ended September 30, 2011. We
have never had a work stoppage and none of ourogesd are represented by a labor organization.dNegiader our relations with our
employees to be good.

Available Information

Our principal offices are located at 8911 Balboa&A®Buite B, San Diego, CA 92123 and our telephmmeber is (858) 309700. We ar
subject to the reporting requirements under thei®éxs Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Brgle Act”). Consequently, we are
required to file reports and information with thec8rities and Exchange Commission (“SE@igluding reports on the following forms: ann
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on FormQ@,Geurrent reports on Form 8-K, and amendmentisdse reports filed or furnished
pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchakgle These reports and other information concernisignay be accessed, free of charge,
through the SEC’s website wtvw.sec.goand our website atww.miteksystems.connformation contained in, or that can be accessed
through, our website is not part of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS.

The following risk factors and other informatiorcinded in this Form 10-K should be carefully coesetl. The risks and uncertainties
described below are not the only ones we face.tiddi risks and uncertainties not presently kndwiis or that we presently deem less
significant may also impair our business operatidhany of the following risks actually occur, domsiness, financial condition, results of
operations and future growth prospects would likedymaterially and adversely affected. In thesewirstances, the market price of our stock
could decline, and you could lose all or part ofiygvestment.

Risks Associated With Our Business
We have a history of losses and we may not acheditability in the future.

Our operations resulted in a net loss of $125,087%682,353 for the years ended September 30, 204 2010, respectively. We have a
history of losses and may continue to incur sigaifit losses for the foreseeable future. As of $eipée 30, 2011, we had an accumulated
deficit of approximately $15,619,000. Our futurefiiability depends upon many factors, includingesal that are beyond our control. These
factors include without limitation:

» changes in the demand for our products and sen

» loss of key customers or contrac

» the introduction of competitive softwat

» the failure to gain market acceptance of our nesvexisting products

» the failure to successfully, cost effectively amdaly develop, introduce and market new produesyises and product
enhancements; ar

» the timing of recognition of revenu

In addition, as a public company, we incur sigrifitlegal, accounting, and other expenses relatbding a public company. As a result
of these expenditures, we will have to generatesaisthin increased revenue to achieve and maifutaire profitability.
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We may need to raise additional capital to fund ¢immiing operations and an inability to raise the nessary capital or to do so on accepte
terms could threaten the success of our business.

We currently anticipate that our available capiéslources, including our credit facility and opergicash flow, will be sufficient to meet
our expected working capital and capital expendirequirements for at least the next 12 months.é¥ew such resources may not be
sufficient to fund the long-term growth of our husss. If we determine that it is necessary to raiishtional funds, we may choose to do so
through strategic collaborations, licensing arraneets, public or private equity or debt financiadyank line of credit, or other arrangements.
We cannot be sure that any additional fundinge#éded, will be available on terms favorable towatall. Furthermore, any additional equity
or equityrelated financing may be dilutive to our stockhotdeew equity securities may have rights, prefegsror privileges senior to those
existing holders of our shares of common stock,detut or equity financing, if available, may sulbjes to restrictive covenants and significant
interest costs. If we obtain funding through atstyec collaboration or licensing arrangement, we tma required to relinquish our rights to
certain of our technologies, products or marketergtories. If we are unable to obtain the finamichecessary to support our operations, we
may be required to defer, reduce or eliminate gepgknned expenditures or significantly curtail operations.

Our ability to utilize our net operating loss caryrwards and certain other tax attributes may benited.

Federal and state tax laws impose restrictionderutilization of net operating loss (“NOL”") anckteredit carryforwards in the event of
an “ownership change” for tax purposes as define8dxtion 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. UnéetiGn 382 of the Internal Revenue
Code, if a corporation undergoes an “ownership gbeafgenerally defined as greater than 50% chabgedlue) in its equity ownership over a
three year period), the corporation’s ability t@ uts pre-change NOL carryforwards and other prmge tax attributes to offset its post-change
income may be limited. At September 30, 2011, waaldbelieve that any “ownership changblaVe occurred which would materially limit t
utilization of the NOL carryforwards. However, futuequity offerings or acquisitions that have egaig a component of the purchase price
could result in an “ownership change”. If an “owstg@p change” does occur in the future, utilizatdéthe NOL or other tax attributes may be
limited.

We currently derive substantially all of our revesudrom a single type of technology. If this techiogly and the related products do not
achieve or continue to achieve market acceptanas, lsusiness, financial condition and results of ofions would be adversely affected.

We currently derive substantially all of our protitevenues from licenses and sales of softwareyatedo customers incorporating our
intelligent character recognition technology. If au® unable to achieve or continue to achieve nateeptance of our core technology or
products incorporating such technology, we will geterate significant revenue growth from the eélgur products.

Additionally, factors adversely affecting the pnigiof or demand for our products and services, ssatompetition from other products
or technologies, any decline in the demand for deut image processing, negative publicity or olsmdace of the software environments in
which our products operate could adversely affecthwusiness, financial condition and results ofrapens.

If economic or other factors negatively affect tlsenall and mediur-sized business sector, our customers may beconvégllimy or unable to
purchase our products and services, which could sawur revenue to declin

Many of our existing and target customers are énstimall and medium-sized business sector. Thesedsses are more likely to be
significantly affected by economic downturns tharger, more established businesses. Additiondlfse customers often have limited
discretionary funds, which they may choose to spendems other than our products and servicesnHll and medium-sized businesses
experience economic hardship, it could negativéfigcathe overall demand for our products and s®wjand could cause our revenue to
decline.
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We face competition from several companies that rhaye greater resources than we do, which couldutes price reductions, reduced
margins or loss of market share.

We compete against numerous companies in theigeeticharacter recognition market. Competitiothis market may increase as a
result of a number of factors, such as the entrahoew or larger competitors. These competitorg treve greater financial, technical,
marketing and public relations resources, largentbases and greater brand or name recogniteonwle do. These competitors could, among
other things:

» announce new products or technologies that havpdtential to replace our existing product offedr
» force us to charge lower prices;
» adversely affect our relationships with currengiots.

We may be unable to compete successfully agaimstwrent and potential competitors and if we Ibasiness to our competitors or are
forced to lower our prices, our revenue, operatireggins and market share could decline.

We must continue to engage in extensive researct davelopment in order to remain competitive.

Our ability to compete effectively with our intgJént character recognition product line depends upo ability to meet changing market
conditions and develop enhancements to our producgstimely basis in order to maintain our competiadvantage. Rapidly advancing
technology and rapidly changing user preferencesacerize the markets for products incorporatirtgliigent character recognition
technology. Our continued growth will ultimatelypand upon our ability to develop additional teclogids and attract strategic alliances for
related or separate product lines. There can l@ssorance that we will be successful in developimfymarketing product enhancements and
additional technologies, that we will not experiemifficulties that could delay or prevent the segsful development, introduction and
marketing of these products, or that our new prtsland product enhancements will adequately meetettjuirements of the marketplace, will
be of acceptable quality, or will achieve marketegtance.

Our annual and quarterly results have fluctuated emtly in the past and will likely continue to do ,swhich may cause substantial
fluctuations in our common stock price

Our annual and quarterly operating results hatkérpast and may in the future fluctuate signifiadepending on factors including the
timing of customer projects and purchase ordens, preduct announcements and releases by us andaatimpanies, gain or loss of significant
customers, price discounting of our products, itméng of expenditures, customer product deliveiguieements, availability and cost of
components or labor and economic conditions, géyesad in the information technology market, sfieally. Revenues related to most of
licenses for mobile products are required to begaized upon satisfaction of all applicable reveragngnition criteria. The recognition of
future revenues from these licenses is dependeatmmber of factors, including the timing of implentation of our products by our channel
partners and customers and the timing of any rersrdf additional licenses and/or license renellsur channel partners and customers.

In fiscal years 2011 and 2010, sales of licensesm&or two channel partners has comprised a 8ignifpart of our revenue. This is
attributable to the timing of renewal or purchaskEbcenses and does not represent a dependerex@yachannel partner. If we were to lose a
channel partner relationship, we do not believdhsutoss would adversely affect our operations bse@ither we or another channel partner
could sell our products to the end-user that pigetidrom the channel partner we lost. However & ¢lase, we or other channel partners must
establish a relationship with the end-user, whizhld take time to develop, if it develops at all.

Any unfavorable change in these or other factotdcchave a material adverse effect on our operagsglts for a particular quarter or
year, which may cause downward pressure on our @ymstock price. We expect quarterly and annuatdiations to continue for tt
foreseeable future.



Table of Contents

Our historical order flow patterns, which we expetct continue, have caused forecasting difficultites us. If we do not meet our forecasts
analysts’ forecasts for us, the price of our commstock may decline.

Historically, a significant portion of our salesviearesulted from shipments during the last few wea&fkthe quarter from orders received
in the final month of the applicable quarter. We klawever, base our expense levels, in signifipant, on our expectations of future revenue.
As a result, we expect our expense levels to lagively fixed in the short term. Any concentratioisales at the end of the quarter may limit
our ability to plan or adjust operating expensdweréfore, if anticipated shipments in any quartendt occur or are delayed, expenditure le
could be disproportionately high as a percentagalefs, and our operating results for that quarternd be adversely affected. As a result, we
believe that period-to-period comparisons of osules of operations are not and will not necesgéel meaningful, and you should not rely
upon them as an indication of future performanteut operating results for a quarter are belowetkgectations of public market analysts and
investors, the price of our common stock may beenedty adversely affected.

Defects or malfunctions in our products could huour reputation, sales and profitability

Our business and the level of customer acceptanmerg@roducts depend upon the continuous, effecivd reliable operation of our
products. Our products are extremely complex aadcantinually being modified and improved, andwashsmay contain undetected defects or
errors when first introduced or as new versiongeleased. To the extent that defects or errorsecaur products to malfunction and our
customers’ use of our products is interrupted,reputation could suffer and our revenue could dectir be delayed while such defects are
remedied. We may also be subject to liability fug tiefects and malfunctions of third party techgglpartners and others with whom our
products and services are integrated.

In addition, our products are typically intended dige in applications that are critical to a custgmbusiness. As a result, we believe that
our customers and potential customers have a greatsitivity to product defects than the marketsiaftware products in general. There ca
no assurance that, despite our testing, errorswilbe found in new products or releases aftemeentement of commercial shipments,
resulting in loss of revenues or delay in marketeatance, diversion of development resources, darttagur reputation, adverse litigation, or
increased service and warranty costs, any of wiimhld have a material adverse effect upon our essinoperating results and financial
condition.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property

If the patents we own or license, or our other ifieetual property rights, do not adequately protemir technologies, we may lose mar}
share to our competitors and be unable to operatie business profitably

Our success depends significantly on our abilitgrmtect our rights to the technologies used inproducts, including Mobile Deposit
We rely on trademark, trade secret, copyright eatémnt law, as well as a combination of nondisclesoonfidentiality and other contractual
arrangements to protect our technology and rigthdsvever, these legal means afford only limited @ctibn and may not adequately protect
rights or permit us to gain or maintain any compatiadvantage. In addition, we cannot be assuradany of our pending patent applications
will result in the issuance of a patent to us. Th®. Patent and Trademark Office (“PTO”) may denyegjuire significant narrowing of claims
in our pending patent applications, and patentes®s a result of the pending patent applicatibasy, may not provide us with significant
commercial protection or be issued in a form teatdvantageous to us. We could also incur subatatts in proceedings before the PTO.
Our issued and licensed patents and those thabm@sued or licensed in the future may expire ay e challenged, invalidated or
circumvented, which could limit our ability to stapmpetitors from marketing related technologieddifionally, upon expiration of our issued
or licensed patents, we may lose some of our righéxclude others from making, using, sellingroporting products using the technology
based on the expired patents. We also must regontractual provisions with the third parties tlegnse technology to us and that obligate
these third parties to protect our rights in thehtelogy licensed to us. There is no guaranteetiiese third parties would be successful in
attempting to protect our rights in any such
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licensed technology. There is no assurance thapettars will not be able to design around our pta®r other intellectual property or any
intellectual property or technology licensed to\W also rely on unpatented proprietary technoldgg.cannot assure you that we can
meaningfully protect all our rights in our unpatshiproprietary technology or that others will nadépendently develop substantially
equivalent proprietary products or processes aratise gain access to our unpatented proprietahntdogy.

We seek to protect our know-how and other unpatkepteprietary technology with confidentiality agneents and intellectual property
assignment agreements with our employees, conssiligartners, and customers. However, such agrésmmy not be enforceable or may not
provide meaningful protection for our proprietanydrmation in the event of unauthorized use orld&are or other breaches of the agreements
or in the event that our competitors discover dependently develop similar or identical designstber proprietary information. In addition,
we rely on the use of registered and common ladetrearks with respect to the brand names of sorergfroducts. Common law trademarks
provide less protection than registered trademautss of rights in our trademarks could adverséflgca our business, financial condition and
results of operations.

Furthermore, the laws of foreign countries mayprotect our intellectual property rights to the saeextent as the laws of the U.S. If we
fail to apply for intellectual property protection if we cannot adequately protect our intellecfuaperty rights in these foreign countries, our
competitors may be able to compete more effectiaghinst us, which could adversely affect our cditipe position, as well as our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Claims that we infringe upon the rights of third pies may give rise to costly and lengthy litigaticand we could be prevented from selling
products, forced to pay damages, and defend agditigation.

In the past, third parties have asserted claimscir@ain technologies incorporated in our prodirtisnge their patent rights. Although
we have resolved such claims and there are cuyreattlaims of infringement pending against usteélen be no assurance that we will not
receive notices in the future from parties assettiivat our products infringe, or may infringe, beit intellectual property rights. If our
technology and products infringe upon the propretaghts of other parties, we could incur substdrtosts and we may have to:

» obtain licenses, which may not be available on cencially reasonable terms, if at all, and may be-exclusive, thereby givin
our competitors access to the same intellectuglepty licensed to u

» expend significant resources to redesign our prizdourctechnology to avoid infringemel
» discontinue the use and sale of infringing prodt
* pay substantial damages; ¢

« defend litigation or administrative proceedings ethinay be costly whether we win or lose, and wisimtild result in a substanti
diversion of our valuable management resoutr

Furthermore, we may initiate claims or litigatiogaénst parties for infringement of our proprietaights or to establish the validity of our
proprietary rights. Litigation, either as plaintdf defendant, could result in significant expetwsas, whether or not such litigation is resolved
in our favor. Even if we were to prevail, any laigpn could be costly and time-consuming and walivert the attention of our management
and key personnel from our business operationgh&unore, as a result of a patent infringementtswitight against us or our channel partners
or licensees, we or our channel partners or licensgay be forced to stop or delay developing, nentufing or selling technologies or
potential products that are claimed to infringdiedt party’s intellectual property unless that pagtants us or our channel partners’ or
licensees’ rights to use its intellectual propetiitimately, we may be unable to develop some ofteahnologies or potential products or may
have to discontinue development of a product catdidr cease some of our business operationsessila of patent infringement claims, wh
could severely harm our business.
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Risks Related to our Operations

If we are unable to retain and recruit qualified pgonnel, or if any of our key executives or key doyees discontinues his or hi
employment with us, it may have a material advee$iect on our business.

We are highly dependent on the key members of @magement team and other key technical persorived Were to lose the services
of one or more of our key personnel, or if we faite attract and retain additional qualified persanit could materially and adversely affect
our customer relationships, competitive positiod eevenues. Furthermore, recruiting and retainimglified highly skilled engineers involved
in the ongoing developments required to refineteahnologies and to introduce future applicatieneritical to our success. We may be unable
to attract, assimilate and retain qualified persgbrmm acceptable terms given the competition withanhigh technology industry. We do not
have any employment agreements providing for aiipéerm of employment with any member of our senhanagement. We do not maint
“key man” insurance policies on any of our officereemployees.

We plan to grant stock options or other forms afiggawards in the future as a method of attracéing retaining employees, motivating
performance and aligning the interests of employétdsthose of our stockholders. As of November&m.1, we had 22,000 shares of com
stock available for issuance pursuant to futuratgraf equity awards under our existing equity cenmgation plans, which will limit our ability
to provide equity incentive awards to existing &undre employees. If we are unable to adopt, imgletrand maintain equity compensation
arrangements that provide sufficient incentivesymay be unable to retain our existing employeesadindct additional qualified candidates. If
we are unable to retain our existing employeedudtiog qualified technical personnel, and attraittiional qualified candidates, our business
and results of operations could be adversely aftect

Legislation and governmental regulations enactedthre U.S. and other countries that apply to us ordur customers may require us
change our current products and services and/oruksn additional expenses, which could adverseljeat our business and results of
operations.

Legislation and governmental regulations affect lmawbusiness is conducted, including changesgislition and governmental
regulations impacting financial institutions, inaoce companies and mobile device companies. Giohedlislation and governmental
regulations also influence our current and prospeaciustomers’ activities, as well as their expgotes and needs in relation to our products
and services. Compliance with these laws and régakmay be onerous and expensive, and may besistent from jurisdiction to
jurisdiction, further increasing the cost of comapiée. Any such increase in costs as a result ofggdsin these laws and regulations or in t
interpretation could individually or in the aggréganake our products and services less attraaiioat customers, delay the introduction of
new products in one or more regions, cause usaoggor limit our business practices or affectfmancial condition and operating results.

Compliance with changing regulations concerning qmrate governance and public disclosure may resaladditional expenses.

In recent years, there have been several chandg@ssnrules, regulations and standards relatirgptporate governance and public
disclosure, including the Dodd-Frank Wall StreefdRe and Consumer Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frardt’f\ the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002 (“Sarbanes-Oxley'gnd various other new regulations promulgated BySBEC and rules promulgated by the national séesigixchange

The Dodd-Frank Act, enacted in July 2010, expaerdsifal regulation of corporate governance matteilsraposes requirements on
publicly-held companies, including us, to, amonigeotthings, provide stockholders with a periodigisory vote on executive compensation
and also adds compensation committee reforms dmzherd pay-for-performance disclosures. While sproeisions of the Dodd-Frank Act
are effective upon enactment, others will be immatad upon the SEC’s adoption of related rulesragdlations. The scope and timing of the
adoption of such rules and regulations is uncedaphaccordingly, the cost of compliance with tre®-Frank Act is also uncertain.
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In addition, Sarbanes-Oxley specifically requil@®ong other things, that we maintain effectiverimaécontrols for financial reporting
and disclosure of controls and procedures. In@aetr, we must perform system and process evaluatid testing of our internal controls over
financial reporting to allow management to repartioe effectiveness of our internal controls owearficial reporting, as required by
Section 404 of Sarbanes-Oxley. Our testing, osth®Esequent testing by our independent registerblicpaccounting firm, if and when
required, may reveal deficiencies in our interraiteols over financial reporting that are deemebdanaterial weaknesses. Our compliance
with Section 404 will require that we incur subsiainaccounting expense and expend significant mament efforts. We currently have
limited internal audit capabilities and will neeaxdtire additional accounting and financial staffwéppropriate public company experience and
technical accounting knowledge. Moreover, if we moeable to comply with the requirements of Setd04 in a timely manner, or if we or «
independent registered public accounting firm idexst deficiencies in our internal controls overdncial reporting that are deemed to be
material weaknesses, the market price of our stockd decline, and we could be subject to sanctiwrisvestigations by the SEC or other
regulatory authorities, which would require additfinancial and management resources.

These and other new or changed laws, rules, régnsaand standards are, or will be, subject toingrinterpretations in many cases due
to their lack of specificity. As a result, theirg@igation in practice may evolve over time as naudgnce is provided by regulatory and
governing bodies, which could result in continuingeertainty regarding compliance matters and higbsts necessitated by ongoing revisions
to disclosure and governance practices. Our effortdmply with evolving laws, regulations and stards are likely to continue to result in
increased general and administrative expenses diveision of management time and attention fromeneie-generating activities to
compliance activities. Further, compliance with reavd existing laws, rules, regulations and starslardy make it more difficult and expens
for us to maintain director and officer liabilitydurance, and we may be required to accept recumentage or incur substantially higher costs
to obtain coverage. Members of our board of dinescémd our principal executive officer and printifi@ancial officer could face an increased
risk of personal liability in connection with thefformance of their duties. As a result, we mayeh@ificulty attracting and retaining qualified
directors and executive officers, which could haum business. We continually evaluate and monggulatory developments and cannot
estimate the timing or magnitude of additional sage may incur as a result.

Our restated certificate of incorporation and ameed and restated bylaws provide for indemnificatiohofficers and directors at our
expense and limits their liability, which may reguh a major cost to us and hurt the interests airostockholders because corporate
resources may be expended for the benefit of officend/or directors.

Pursuant to our restated certificate of incorporatind amended and restated bylaws and as autharzer applicable Delaware law,
directors and officers are not liable for monetdaynages for breach of fiduciary duty, except fability (i) for any breach of the director’s
duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockhetd, (ii) for acts or omissions not in good faitttleat involve intentional misconduct or a
knowing violation of law, (iii) under Section 174 thhe Delaware General Corporation Law or (iv) &y transaction from which the director
derived an improper personal benefit.

We have entered into a separate Indemnificatioredgent (the “Indemnification Agreement”) with eaxtour directors. Under the
Indemnification Agreement, each director is entile be indemnified against all expenses, judgme®isalties, fines and amounts paid in
settlement actually and reasonably incurred byndoehalf of such director in connection with angitls, proceedings or other actions brought
against such director as a result of the direstservice to us, provided that the director (igedh good faith; (ii) reasonably believed the @a
was in our best interest; and (iii) in criminal peedings, reasonably believed the conduct wasmatvul. Additionally, the Indemnification
Agreement entitles each director to contributiomxfienses from us in any proceeding in which wgaindy liable with such director, but for
which indemnification is not otherwise availabl&elindemnification Agreement also entitles eachalor to advancement of expenses
incurred by such director in connection with argirel, proceeding or other action in advance of ihal f

13



Table of Contents

adjudication of any such claim, proceeding or otetion, provided the director agrees to reimbusséor all such advances if it shall ultimat
be determined that the director is not entitlethttemnification.

The foregoing limitations of liability and provisie for expenses may result in a major cost to dshamt the interests of our stockholders
because corporate resources may be expended foetledit of officers and/or directors.

From time to time our board of directors exploreadconsiders strategic alternatives, including fineings, strategic alliances, acquisitions,
or the possible sale of the Company. Our board wédtors may not be able to identify or completeyasuitable strategic alternatives and a
such alternatives that are completed could haveimpact on our operations or stock pric

From time to time our board of directors explored aonsiders potential strategic alternatives iy be available to us, including
financings, strategic alliances, acquisitions her possible sale of the Company. We currently mavagreements or commitments to engage in
any specific strategic transactions, and we caassdre you that our exploration of various stratefernatives will result in any specific
action or transaction. If we determine to engage $trategic transaction, we cannot predict theaththat such strategic transaction might t
on our operations or stock price. We do not intengdrovide updates or make further comments reggrttie evaluation of strategic
alternatives, unless otherwise required by law.

Risks Related to Our Stock

Concentration of ownership among our existing ditecs and executive officers may limit an investogsility to influence significant
corporate decisions.

As of November 30, 2011: (i) the Chairman of ouatabof directors and his spouse, who is also a neewtour board of directors,
beneficially owned approximately 10% of our outstiig common stock; and (ii) our directors and exieewofficers as a group beneficially
owned approximately 18% of our outstanding comntonks Subject to any fiduciary duties owed to otlven stockholders under Delaware
law, these stockholders may be able to exerciseftignt influence over matters requiring stocktesldpproval, including the election of
directors and approval of significant corporatesactions, and will have some control over our rgangnt and policies. Some of these
persons may have interests that are different froms. For example, these stockholders may suppoposals and actions with which you
may disagree. The concentration of ownership cdaldy or prevent a change in control of the Compamytherwise discourage a potential
acquirer from attempting to obtain control of then@pany, which in turn could reduce the price of stock. In addition, these stockholders
could use their voting influence to maintain ouiséirg management and directors in office, delaprevent changes in control of the
Company, or support or reject other managemenbaadd proposals that are subject to stockholderosph such as amendments to our
employee stock plans and approvals of significerarfcing transactions.

Future sales of our stock, including those by oursiders, may cause our stock price to decline.

A significant portion of our outstanding shares lag&l by directors and executive officers. Resafes substantial number of shares of
stock by these stockholders, announcements ofrtoped resale of substantial amounts of our stotke perception that substantial resales
may be made by such stockholders, could advensgiggt the market price of our stock. Some of otgaiors and executive officers have
entered into Rule 10b5-1 trading plans pursuamttich they have arranged to sell shares of oukdtoen time to time in the future. Actual or
potential sales by these insiders, including thosger a pre-arranged Rule 10b5-1 trading plandcbelinterpreted by the market as an
indication that the insider has lost confidenceun stock and adversely impact the market priceunfstock.

We have registered and expect to continue to exgsstares reserved under our equity plans undegestation Statement on Form S-8.
All shares issued pursuant to a Registration State¢imn Form S-8 can be freely sold in the publickegupon issuance, subject to restrictions
on our affiliates under Rule 144. If a large
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number of these shares are sold in the public mathe sales could adversely impact the tradingepoif our stock.

The market price of our common stock could decliag a result of sales of a large number of sharesoaf common stock in the market, and
the perception that these sales could occur mayalepress the market price of our common stock.

On November 14, 2011, we filed a universal shejfateation statement on Form S-3 (File No. 333-B5)J9which provides for the
possible issuance of shares of our common stoekeiped stock, debt securities, warrants and wpit® an aggregate amount of $100,000,000
and the resale of shares of our common stock ap ggregate amount of 800,000 shares. This ratjistrstatement has not yet been declared
effective by the SEC. Sales of our common stoobtber securities in the public market may makeadterdifficult for us to sell equity
securities in the future at a time and at a ptieg tve deem appropriate. These sales also cousd @aur stock price to fall and make it more
difficult for you to sell shares of our common $t@t prices you may deem acceptable.

Our corporate documents and Delaware law contairopisions that could discourage, delay or preverghaange in control of our company,
prevent attempts to replace or remove current magagnt and reduce the market price of our sto

Provisions in our restated certificate of incorgimraand amended and restated bylaws may discoudatgey or prevent a merger or
acquisition involving us that our stockholders ncaysider favorable. For example, our restatedfawate of incorporation authorizes our bo
of directors to issue up to one million sharest&hk check” preferred stock. As a result, withfurther stockholder approval, the board of
directors has the authority to attach special sgimcluding voting and dividend rights, to thiefarred stock. With these rights, preferred
stockholders could make it more difficult for arthparty to acquire us.

We are also subject to the anti-takeover provisafrtee Delaware General Corporation Law. Undes¢hgrovisions, if anyone becomes
an “interested stockholder,” we may not enter etdusiness combination” with that person for thyears without special approval, which
could discourage a third party from making a talemiffer and could delay or prevent a change irtrobof us. An “interested stockholder”
means, generally, someone owning 15% or more obotstanding voting stock or an affiliate of ounattowned 15% or more of our
outstanding voting stock during the past three gjesaubject to certain exceptions as describede#laware General Corporation Law.

The market price of our common stock has been vitgaand your investment in our stock could sufferdecline in value.

The market price of our common stock has beenjslikely to continue to be, highly volatile. Dugrthe fiscal year ended Septembet
2011, the closing price of our common stock ranfgech $1.75 to $12.91. In addition, the stock maithked from time to time experienced
significant price and volume fluctuations that hgegticularly affected the market prices for thenocoon stocks of technology companies and
that have often been unrelated to the operatinfpmeance of particular companies. These broad mélketuations may adversely affect the
market price of our common stock. You may not ble &oresell your shares at or above the pricepaid for them due to fluctuations in the
market price of our stock caused by changes iroparating performance or prospects and other factor

Some specific factors, in addition to the othek factors identified above, that may have a sigaiiit affect on the price of our stock,
many of which we cannot control, include but arelimoited to:

e our announcements or our competi’ announcements of technological innovatic
» quarterly variations in operating resul
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» changes in our product pricing policies or thosewfcompetitors

» claims of infringement of intellectual property g or other litigation

» the publi’s reaction to our press releases, our other pahhouncements and our filings with the Si
» changes in accounting standards, policies, guidantepretations or principle

» changes in our growth rate or our compet’ growth rates

» developments regarding our patents or proprieights or those of our competitol

» our inability to raise additional capital as neec

» changes in financial markets or general economiclitions;

» sales of stock by us or members of our managereant br board of directors; a

» changes in stock market analyst recommendatioramings estimates regarding our stock, other coabp@companies or ol
industry generally

Because we do not intend to pay dividends, our ktmdders will benefit from an investment in our camon stock only if our stock pric
appreciates in value.

We have never declared or paid a dividend on oomeon stock. We currently intend to retain our fatearnings, if any, for use in the
operation and expansion of our business and dexpect to pay any dividends in the foreseeabledutis a result, the success of an
investment in our common stock will depend entingbpn any future appreciation in its value. Therao guarantee that our common stock
appreciate in value or even maintain the pricetdtkvit was purchased.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS.
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

Our principal executive offices, as well as oureash and development facility, are located in apipnately 14,205 square feet of office
space in San Diego, California. The lease for syette expires in December 2012. We believe thagxigting properties are in good condit
and are sufficient and suitable for the conduaiwfbusiness. As our existing lease expires amgeasontinue to expand our operations, we
believe that suitable space will be available tomgommercially reasonable terms.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are not aware of any legal proceedings or cléiaswe believe may have, individually or in thggeegate, a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition, operatingiitss cash flow or liquidity.

ITEM 4. (REMOVED AND RESERVED).
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND IS SUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES.

Market Information

On July 14, 2011, our common stock began tradintheNASDAQ Capital Market under the ticker symtdITK.” Prior to July 14,
2011, our common stock was quoted on the Over-that@r Bulletin Board (the “OTCBB”). The closinglesprice of our common stock on
November 30, 2011 was $7.¢

The following table sets forth, for the fiscal petiindicated, the high and low closing sales prfoe®ur common stock as reported on
NASDAQ Capital Market after July 14, 2011 and tlghhand low bid information for our common stocktbe OTCBB prior to July 14, 201
The quotations for our common stock as traded erORCBB reflect inter-dealer prices, without retadrk-up, markdown or commission and
may not necessarily represent actual transactions.

High Low

FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011

Fourth Quarter $12.91 $6.81

Third Quartel 7.3% 4.5(C

Second Quarte 6.5¢€ 3.6t

First Quartel 6.0t 1.7k
FISCAL YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2010

Fourth Quarte $ 1.7¢ $0.8(

Third Quartel 0.9t 0.5¢€

Second Quarte 0.8t 0.6C

First Quartel 1.04 0.6C

* Reflects the high and low closing sales pricesoiar common stock after July 14, 2011. For theqgakefrom July 1, 2011 through July 13,
2011, the high and low bid information for our conmstock on the OTCBB was $8.37 and $7.35, respdgti
Holders
As of November 30, 2011, there were 387 sharehsloferecord of our common stock and an undetermmawber of beneficial owners.

Dividends

We have not paid any dividends on our common stdék currently intend to retain earnings for useun business and do not anticipate
paying cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
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Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table sets forth certain informati@yarding our equity compensation plans as of &#pte 30, 2011, with respect to
the shares of common stock that may be issued thygoexercise of options under our existing equitynpensation plans and arrangements in
effect as of September 30, 2011. The informati@tutes the number of shares covered by, and thghtezl average exercise price of,
outstanding options and the number of shares rengaavailable for future grant, excluding the sisaeebe issued upon exercise of outstan
options.

Number of securities
remaining available for

Weighted-average future issuance under
Number of securities tc exercise price of equity compensation
be issued upon exercis outstanding options plans (excluding
of outstanding options securities reflected in
warrants and rights warrants and rights column (a))
. _ @ (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by seci
holders (1, 4,453,90: $ 1.62 932,00(
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders(2 400,00( $ 1.0¢ —

(1) Comprised of our 1999 Stock Option Plan (1999 Pla™), 2000 Stock Option Plan (t“2000 Pla”"), 2002 Stock Option Plan, 20t
Stock Option Plan, 2010 Stock Option Plan and DineRestricted Stock Unit Plan approved by our shalders in 2011. The 1999 and
2000 Plan, each of which provided for the purchafagp to 1,000,000 shares of our common stock tjimdncentive and non-qualified
stock options, terminated on June 10, 2009 and iDkee 13, 2010, respectively; however options ghateder such plans that were
outstanding at such date remain in effect untihspations are exercised or expired. As of SepterBbe2011, there were options to
purchase 490,250 and 576,612 shares of our comtack gutstanding under the 1999 Plan and 2000 Péapectively

(2) In connection with his appointment as President Chief Executive Officer of the Company in M2303, James B. DeBello was granted
an option to purchase up to 400,000 shares of@urmmn stock. This grant was made outside of anjtyencentive plan of the
Company as an inducement award pursuant to Rulg(&g3) of the NASDAQ Listing Rules and has notibapproved by our
stockholders

Sales of Equity Securities During the Period

All equity securities that we sold during the pdrivered by this Form 10-K that were not registanader the Securities Act of 1933
have been previously reported in our quarterly respon Form 10-Q or on our current reports on F8rka

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

As a smaller reporting company, as defined by 8ecaD(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are not requitegrovide the information set forth
in this Item.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT ’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AN D RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

You should read this discussion together with itheenicial statements, related notes and other fimgrinformation included in this Form 10-K.
The following discussion may contain predictiorstineates and other forward-looking statements thablve a number of risks and
uncertainties, including those discussed under tém-"Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Form 103ese risks could cause our actual
results to differ materially from any future penfioance suggested below. Please see “Important NodeitA-orward—Looking Statements” at
the beginning of this Form 10-K.

18



Table of Contents

Overview

Mitek Systems, Inc. is engaged in the developrsaié and service of its proprietary software sohgirelated to mobile imaging
solutions and intelligent character recognitiontwafe.

We have historically provided financial institut®with advanced imaging and analytics softwareutbenticate and extract data from
imaged checks and other documents. Currently, wajplying our patented technology in image coiwacind intelligent data extraction to
enter the market for mobile financial and busireggslications. Our technology for extracting datarirany photo taken using camera-equipped
smartphones and tablets enables the developmennetimer friendly applications that use the carasra keyboard to enter data and comg
transactions. Users take a picture of the doculaethtour products do the rest—correcting image distg extracting relevant data, routing
images to their desired location, and processigstictions through users’ financial institutions.

Our Mobile Deposi® product is a software application that allows usenemotely deposit a check using their smartploameera. As of
September 30, 2011, 161 financial institutionsluding 7 of the top 10 U.S. retail banks and paynfiecilitating companies, have signed
agreements to depldyiobile Deposi®® Other mobile applications we offer inclutiobile Photo Bill Pay™a mobile bill paying application
that allows users to pay their bills using theirstphone camer&jobile ACH Enroliment™an application that enables consumers to enroll
their checking accounts as funding sources for fagiayments by taking photos of blank checks wigirtsmartphonedJlobile Balance
Transfer™ a credit card shopping application that allows er tis transfer an existing balance by capturingrage of their current statement,
Mobile Imaging Cloud™our mobile imaging platform that allows users tptoae, extract and route information containedaouiments and
can be used to create camera-based mobile solulitmisle Receip® a receipt archival and expense report applicadodMobile Phax® a
mobile document faxing application using our prefaiy technology. Our mobile applications suppbntnajor smartphone operating systems,
including the iPhoneé , Androiel , and Blackbefry

We market and sell our mobile solutions throughnoigh partners or directly to enterprise customadsendusers who typically purcha:
term licenses based on the number of transactiosghiscribers that use our mobile applications. aoibile solutions are often embedded in
other mobile banking or enterprise applicationsedigyed by banks or their partners, and marketeémtheir own proprietary brands. During
the past fiscal year, we began developing newisaolsifor the insurance market as well as leveragedglatform to create custom mobile
imaging solutions. All of our mobile imaging solotis use our proprietary technology to capture aad data from photos of documents taken
using camera-equipped smartphones.

Recent Events
Listing on the NASDAQ Capital Marke

On July 14, 2011, our common stock began tradintherNASDAQ Capital Market under the ticker symtdITK.” Prior to July 14,
2011, our common stock was quoted on the Over-thaater Bulletin Board.

Private Placemen

In May 2011, we entered into a securities purclageement with certain accredited investors putsteerhich, we sold to the investors
an aggregate of 2,857,143 shares of our commok atax purchase price of $5.25 per share for aggeegross proceeds of $15,000,000. We
paid cash compensation of $1,050,000 in placengaritdees, reimbursed approximately $25,000 ofgsteant agent out-of-pocket expenses,
and incurred legal fees of approximately $80,0060nnection with the private placement.
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Market Opportunities, Challenges and Risks

The growth in the acceptance of mobile bankingibgrfcial institutions and their customers has hetlgéve our recent growth. During
fiscal 2011, we experienced a significant increagbe number of financial institutions that haméegrated and launched our mobile
applications, particularly our Mobile Deposit apliion, as part of their offering of mobile bankictpices for their customers. We believe
that financial institutions see our patented sohgias a way to provide an all-around better retetomer experience in mobile banking.

To sustain our growth, we must continue to offebiteapplications that address a growing marketfobile banking and mobile
imaging solutions sold into other vertical marké&actors adversely affecting the pricing of or dathéor our mobile applications, such as
competition from other products or technologies; decline in the demand for mobile applicationsiegative publicity or obsolescence of the
software environments in which our products operateld result in lower revenues or gross mardhusther, because most of our revenue:
from a single type of technology, our product conation may make us especially vulnerable to mtatkenand and competition from other
technologies, which could reduce our revenues.

The implementation cycles for our software and ises/by our channel partners and customers casngghly, often a minimum of three
to six months and sometimes longer for larger gusts, subject to delays and require significanegtments. For example, through the end of
fiscal 2011, we executed agreements indirectlyuphochannel partners or directly with customerseciog 161 Mobile Deposft customers, 3
of whom have completed implementation and laund¥fielile Deposit® to their customers. If implementatiaf our products by our channel
partners and customers are delayed or otherwiseomgpleted, our business, financial condition, eeslilts of operations may be adversely
affected.

We derive revenue predominately from the salecafriges to use the products covered by our pateethdologies, such as our Mobile
Deposit® application, and to a lesser extent by providingntesance and professional services for the praduetoffer. The revenue we der
from the sale of licenses to use the products eavby our patented technologies is primarily detifrem the sale to our channel partners of
licenses to sell the applications we offer. Throtlghend of fiscal 2011, revenues related to mbguplicenses for mobile products are
required to be recognized upon satisfaction odjafilicable revenue recognition criteria. The redgm of future revenues from these licenses
is dependent on a number of factors, includingitheng of implementation of our products by our ohal partners and customers and the
timing of any re-orders of additional licenses andicense renewals by our channel partners antiegs's.

During the last few quarters, sales of licenses® or two channel partners has comprised a sigmifipart of our revenue each quarter.
This is attributable to the timing of when a part&r channel partner renews or purchases a lidemseus and does not represent a dependenc:
on any channel partner. If we were to lose a chigmemener relationship, we do not believe suchss lould adversely affect our operations
because either we or another channel partner aalildur products to the end-user that purchased the channel partner we lost. However in
that case, we or other channel partners must égiabtelationship with the end-user, which coakkttime to develop, if it develops at all.

We have numerous competitors in the mobile paymadtsstry, many of which have greater financiathteical, marketing and other
resources than we do. However, we believe our padédmage-analysis technology, our growing portfalf products for the financial services
industry and our position as a pure play mobilerpagts company provides us with a competitive acagmtTo remain competitive, we must
be able to continue to offer products that areetive to the ultimate end-user and that are seegirate and convenient. We intend to
continue to further strengthen our portfolio of guets through research and development to helpraain competitive. We may have difficL
meeting changing market conditions and developifigaacements to our software applications on a ¥ifasis in order to maintain our
competitive advantage. Our continued growth wilinnately depend upon our ability to develop additibapplications and attract strategic
alliances that sell such technologies.
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Results of Operations
Revenue

Total revenues increased $5,147,074, or 101%, @®2$5,975 in 2011 compared to $5,118,901 in 20h@.iMcrease was primarily due
an increase in sales of software licenses of $40842 or 153%, to $8,122,744 in 2011 compared ta1B660 in 2010. The increase in
software license sales primarily relates to anease in sales of our Mobile Depdsit  software apgibe of approximately $4,688,000. Sales
of maintenance and professional services incre$28d,990, or 12%, to $2,143,231 in 2011 compareii {608,241 in 2010 primarily due to
an increase in maintenance contracts and the tiofitlge maintenance renewals.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue includes the costs of royaltiesHod party products embedded in our products,réiradion of capitalized software
development costs, cost of reproduction of comgetts and other media devices, and shipping cOsist of revenue increased $221,589, or
23%, to $1,171,734 in 2011 compared to $950,14Dik0. The increase in cost of revenue is primalily to an increase in sales of products
containing third-party software on which we payatbigs. As a percentage of revenue, cost of reveeaeeased to 11% in 2011 compared to
19% in 2010 primarily due to a larger mix of higimeargin mobile products.

Selling and Marketing Expense

Selling and marketing expenses include payroll, leyrge benefits, and other headcount-related castscéated with sales and marketing
personnel and advertising, promotions, trade sheamjnars, and other programs. Selling and maretkpenses increased $1,481,026, or
159%, to $2,410,711 in 2011 compared to $929,6@DI0. As a percentage of net sales, selling antleting expenses increased to 23% in
2011 compared to 18% in 2010. The increase is piliyrdue to increased personnel-related costsudinh stock-based and other incentive
compensation expense, totaling approximately $1(0f®lrelated to an increase in headcount assoaitedhe growth of our business, as v
as higher advertising and promotion expenses mgt@pproximately $145,000.

Research and Development Expen

Research and development expenses include pagmgloyee benefits, consultant expenses, and o#atcount-related costs associated
with product development. These costs are incuoetkévelop new products and to maintain and enhariséing products. We retain what we
believe to be sufficient staff to sustain our @rgtproduct lines, including development of new renfeature-rich versions of our existing
product, as we determine the marketplace demandsal¥é employ research personnel, whose effortmsirimental in ensuring product
paths from current technologies to anticipatedriiggenerations of products within our area of berssn

Research and development expenses increased $998;A0%, to $2,996,109 in 2011 compared to $238®in 2010. The increase is
primarily due to increased personnel-related castdiding stock-based and other incentive comp@msaxpense, totaling approximately
$724,000 related to an increase in headcount agsdaivith the growth of our business. As a pergmti net sales, research and development
expenses decreased to 29% in 2011 compared tor8294.0.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses include paywiployee benefits, and other personnel-relatets @ssociated with finance,
facilities, legal, accounting, and other adminiti@fees. General and administrative expensesased $1,810,666, or 112%, to $3,431,023 in
2011 compared to $1,620,357 in 2010. The increapamarily due to increased personnel-relatedscastiuding stock-based and other
incentive compensation
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expenses, totaling approximately $859,000 duedhériincentive compensation provided in 2011. Othetors contributing to increased
general and administrative expenses in 2011 indhigleer legal fees of approximately $296,000, highéside services of approximately
$289,000, higher public reporting costs of appratily $219,000, higher travel costs of approxinya$&3,000, and higher bad debt expense
of approximately $50,000. As a percentage of niessgeneral and administrative expenses increasgd in 2011 compared to 32% in
2010.

Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest and other expense, net, increased $1280424827,547 in 2011 compared to $298,124 in 20h@.increase is primarily due to
accretion of the discount on the convertible delnestissued in December 2009 and accrued intemesiegprincipal amount of those
convertible debentures, including the remainingnuodized discount of $320,000 related to the bermafconversion feature at the time of the
conversion of the debentures in December 2010rdsténcome was $48,584 in 2011 compared to $1ij¥2810.

Provision for Income Taxe:
For 2011 and 2010, we recorded provisions for inetexes of $2,492 and $2,338, respectively, priméor state franchise taxes.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On September 30, 2011, we had $16,260,584 in catkash equivalents and short-term and long-tewesiments compared to
$1,305,049 on September 30, 2010, an increase4¢®$3,535. The increase in cash and cash equiga@at short-term and long-term
investments was primarily due to the proceeds filoerprivate placement of (i) 500,000 shares ofcaunmon stock at $1.50 per share to an
accredited investor in October 2010, resultingggragate gross proceeds of $750,000, and (ii) greggte of 2,857,143 shares of our comi
stock at a purchase price of $5.25 per share tedited investors in May 2011, resulting in aggtegaoss proceeds of $15,000,000 (together,
the “Fiscal 2011 Private Placements”).

Credit Facility

In January 2011, we entered into a loan and sgcagiteement with our primary operating bank. Trenlagreement permits us to borr
repay and re-borrow, from time to time until Jaryu@t, 2013, up to $400,000 subject to the termscamdlitions of the agreement. Our
obligations under the loan agreement are securedsegurity interest in our equipment and othesq®al property. Interest on the credit
facility accrues at an annual rate equal to onegrgage point above the Prime Rate, fixed on the afaeach advance. Interest on the
outstanding amount under the loan agreement ishpayaonthly. The loan agreement contains custormavenants for credit facilities of this
type, including limitations on the disposition afsats, mergers and reorganizations. We are alggatdd to meet certain financial covenants
under the loan agreement, including minimum ligyidior which we were in compliance as of Septen8#r2011. We had no amounts
outstanding under this credit facility as of Segtem30, 2011.

Net cash provided by operating activiti

Net cash provided by operating activities during fiscal year ended September 30, 2011 was $316Th@8primary non-cash
adjustments to operating activities were stock-basenpensation expense of $1,271,238, non-castesttexpense on the convertible
debentures of $384,124, and depreciation and araticn of $179,291. Cash provided by operatingvdigs also increased due to increases in
accrued payroll and related taxes and accountbpmpd$299,478 and $130,393, respectively, astetiaith the growth of our
business. These changes in cash provided by opgiattivities were offset by an increase in acceueteivable of $1,750,636 associated with
increased sales and the timing of customer billanys receipt of payments.
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Net cash used in investing activitit

Net cash used in investing activities was $10,88Bduring the fiscal year ended September 30, 20hith consisted of $10,614,723
related to the purchase of investments and $204g&&&d to the purchase of property and equipment.

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net cash provided by financing activities during ffscal year ended September 30, 2011 includepmoeeeds of (i) $14,595,366 from
the Fiscal 2011 Private Placements and (ii) $25Bf&dm the exercise of warrants and stock options.

Other Liquidity Matters

On September 30, 2011, we had investments, desijjaatavailable-for-sale marketable securitie$16{604,868, which consisted of
commercial paper and corporate issuances, caitriiil &alue as determined by quoted market prioegdentical or similar assets, with
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, and repas a separate component of stockholders’ edulitgecurities whose maturity or sale is
expected within one year are classified as “cufrentthe balance sheet. All other securities aaggified as “long-term” on the balance sheet.
On September 30, 2011, we had $10,187,638 of ailate-for-sale securities classified as curremnt $417,230 classified as long-term.

We had working capital of $17,343,700 at Septer39e2011, compared to $1,419,840 at September(AM. 2

Based on our current operating plan, we believestineent cash balance, including the funds raingtié Fiscal 2011 Private Placements,
and cash expected to be generated from operatiditsevadequate to satisfy our working capital reefa the next 12 months.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our financial statements and accompanying notepragared in accordance with accounting princigksserally accepted in the U.S.
(“GAAP”). Preparing financial statements requireamagement to make estimates and assumptions teet thfe reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, stockholders’ equity, revenue, expenaad related disclosure of contingent assetsiabilities. Management regularly evaluates its
estimates and assumptions. These estimates andfsws are based on historical experience andadows other factors that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances, and forivettie for making management’s most difficult, eghiye or complex judgments, often as a
result of the need to make estimates about thetsfté matters that are inherently uncertain. Alctesults could vary from those estimates
under different assumptions or conditions. Ouiaaltaccounting policies include revenue recognit@lowance for accounts receivable,
investments, fair value of equity instruments, acttimg for income taxes and capitalized softwaneettgpment costs.

Revenue Recognitio

We enter into contractual arrangements with intilegsaresellers and end-users that may includediog of our software products,
product support and maintenance services, conguggrvices, or various combinations thereof, iniclgdhe sale of such products or services
separately. Our accounting policies regarding doegnition of revenue for these contractual arraveges is fully described in Note 1 to our
financial statements included in this Form 10-K.

We consider many factors when applying GAAP to neserecognition. These factors include, but ardinoted to, whether:

» Persuasive evidence of an arrangement e:

» Delivery of the product or performance of the seevias occurret
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» The fees are fixed or determinak
» Collection of the contractual fee is probable;
* Vendor-specific objective evidence of the fair value ofialivered elements or other appropriate metho@wémue allocation exis

Each of the relevant factors is analyzed to deteerits impact, individually and collectively withieer factors, on the revenue to be
recognized for any particular contract with a costo. Management is required to make judgments dégathe significance of each factor in
applying the revenue recognition standards, asaselthether or not each factor complies with seahdards. Any misjudgment or error by
management in its evaluation of the factors anchfiication of the standards, especially with eesppo complex or new types of transactions,
could have a material adverse effect on our futewenues and operating results.

Accounts Receivabl

We constantly monitor collections from our custosi@nd maintain a provision for estimated crediséssthat is based on historical
experience and on specific customer collectiondssWhile such credit losses have historically beiinin our expectations and the provisions
established, we cannot guarantee that we will naetio experience the same credit loss rates thdiawe in the past. Since our revenue
recognition policy requires customers to be deeaneditworthy, our accounts receivable are basedustomers whose payment is reasonably
assured. Our accounts receivable are derived fedes $0 a wide variety of customers. We do notelvelia change in liquidity of any one
customer or our inability to collect from any onestomer would have a material adverse impact oriancial position.

Investments

We determine the fair value of our assets andliiesi based on the exchange price that would beived for an asset or paid to transf
liability (an exit price) in the principal or moatlvantageous market for the asset or liabilitynoederly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. Valuatidmigoes used to measure fair value maximize thefisbservable inputs and minimize the
use of unobservable inputs. We use a fair valueatdby with three levels of inputs, of which thesfitwo are considered observable and the
unobservable, to measure fair value:

* Level —Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities;

» Level 2—Inputs other than Level 1 that are obsdejadither directly or indirectly, such as quotettes for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are active; or other inputs that are observable orlmanorroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of tesets or liabilities; ar

» Level Z—Unobservable inputs that are supported by litla@market activity and that are significant to thie value of the asse
or liabilities.

In using this fair value hierarchy, management imayequired to make assumptions about pricing bikebgarticipants and assumptic
about risk, specifically when using unobservabpaiis to determine fair value. These assumptiongudggmental in nature and may
significantly affect our results of operations.

Fair Value of Equity Instruments

The valuation of certain items, including valuatminwarrants, the beneficial conversion featuratesl to convertible debt and
compensation expense related to stock optionseptaimvolve significant estimates based on undeglgssumptions made by management.
The valuation of warrants and stock options arethagpon a Black-Scholes valuation model, which imy@stimates of stock volatility,
expected life of the instruments and other assumsgti
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Deferred Income Taxe

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying am@ohfssets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts useth€ome tax purposes. We maintain a valuatioowalhce against the deferred tax asse
to uncertainty regarding the future realizationdzhen historical taxable income, projected futaseable income, and the expected timing o
reversals of existing temporary differences. Usilith time as we can demonstrate that we will ngdoimcur losses or if we are unable to
generate sufficient future taxable income, we cdidldequired to maintain the valuation allowancaitegt our deferred tax assets.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

Research and development costs are charged tosexpsrincurred. However, the costs incurred fodehelopment of computer
software that will be sold, leased, or otherwisekaged are capitalized when technological featjbiias been established. These capitalized
costs are subject to an ongoing assessment ofgeduility based on anticipated future revenuesdrahges in hardware and software
technologies. Costs that are capitalized includectiiabor and related overhead. No such costs eagialized during the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2011.

Amortization of capitalized software developmenstsdoegins when product sales commence. Amortizéiprovided on a product-by-
product basis on either the straight-line methoer @eriods not exceeding three years or the satesmethod. Unamortized capitalized
software development costs determined to be ingxcEnet realizable values of the product are es@e immediately.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For a description of recent accounting pronouncesnand the potential impact of these pronouncenmantaur financial position, results
of operations and cash flows, see Note 1 to oanfiral statements included in this Form 10-K.

ITEM 7A.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK.

As a smaller reporting company, as defined by 8acD(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are not requitegrovide the information set forth
in this Item.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

Our financial statements and supplementary datainedjby this item are set forth at the pages egid in Item 15(a)(1) and (a)(2),
respectively, of this Form 10-K.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE.

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresuak term is defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@) under the Exchange Act, that
designed to provide reasonable assurance thatiaf@n required to be disclosed by us in the reypitrdt we file or submit under the Exchau
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and repuiitbih the time periods specified in the SEC ridesl forms, and that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our managemehiding our principal executive officer and prindifimancial officer, as appropriate, to
allow timely decisions regarding required finandalclosures.
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Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disctestontrols and procedures as of the end of thegeovered by this Form 10-K. We
recognize that any controls and procedures, ncemlatiw well designed and operated, can provide @dgonable assurance of achieving their
objectives and management necessarily appliesdggjent in evaluating the cost-benefit relationgfipossible controls and procedures.
Based on this evaluation, our principal executiffeeer and principal financial officer concludedathour disclosure controls and procedures
were effective as of September 30, 2011.

Management's Report on Internal Control over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is defined
in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchafwge All internal control systems, no matter howlidesigned, have inherent limitations.
Therefore, even those systems determined to beti#fecan provide only reasonable assurance wiheaet to financial statement preparation
and presentation.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effeatigss of our internal control over financial repgrtbased on the framework limternal
Control—Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike Treadway Commission. Based this evaluaton
management concluded that our internal control émancial reporting was effective as of Septen&r2011.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There has been no change in our internal contret imancial reporting during the quarter endedtSeper 30, 2011 that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaff, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.
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PART IlI

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE.
Directors and Executive Officers

Pursuant to our amended and restated bylaws, candBy Directors has fixed the number of authoridgdctors at seven. The members
of the Board of Directors serve until the next aalmaeeting of stockholders and until their succesbave been elected. The officers serve at
the pleasure of the Board of Directors. The follogvtable includes the names and certain informathoout our directors and executive offic

Name Age Position
John M. Thorntor 79 Chairman of the Boar
James B. DeBell 53 President, Chief Executive Officer, and Direc
Russell C. Clarl 43 Chief Financial Office
Vinton P. Cunningham (2 75 Director
Gerald I. Farmer, Ph. D. (1)(2)( 77 Director
Alex W. “Pet¢’ Hart (1)(3) 71 Director
Sally B. Thorntor 77 Director
William P. Tudor (1)(2] 66 Director

(1) Member of the Compensation Committee of the Bod&idiectors
(2) Member of the Audit Committee of the Board of Dis
(3) Member of the Nominating & Corporate Governance Guttee of the Board of Directo

John M. Thornton Mr. Thornton has served as a director since M&886 and as our Chairman since October 1987. $tesarved as
our President and Chief Executive Officer and CRiefancial Officer from September 1998 to May 2008¢en he resigned from his positions
as President and Chief Executive Officer. He resigfnom his position as Chief Financial Officemitay 2005. From May 1991 to February
1992, Mr. Thornton served as our President and fvtay 1991 to July 1991, he served as our Chief Etee Officer. From 1976 through
1988, Mr. Thornton served as Chairman and Vice @i of the Board at Micom Systems, Inc. Mr. Thomis also Chairman of the Board
Thornton Winery Corporation in Temecula, Califorriér. Thornton is married to Sally B. Thornton, @amber of our Board of Directors.
Mr. Thornton holds an A.B. in economics from Pom@ulege and an MBA from Harvard Business SchoslaAdirector since Mitek’s
formation in 1986 and having previously served @asRresident, Chief Executive Officer and Chiefdfinial Officer, Mr. Thornton has in-
depth knowledge of our company and the industrieshich we sell our products. Mr. Thornton alsags to our Board of Directors his
extensive executive management and chairman exyerigith public and privately held companies, wiocin Board of Directors believes
provides him with the skills necessary to serv€hairman of our Board of Directors.

James B. DeBelloMr. DeBello has served as a director since NowsmiB94 and as our President and Chief Executifiegdfince Ma
2003. From January 2009 to October 2011, Mr. DeBablo served as our Chief Financial Officer anck&ary. Prior to joining Mitek, he was
Chief Executive Officer of AsiaCorp Communicatiohs;., a wireless data infrastructure and softweam@pany, from July 2001 to May 2003.
He was Venture Chief Executive Officer for IdeaEdf@ntures, Inc., a venture capital company, fromeJ2000 to June 2001. From May 1999
to May 2000 he was President, Chief Operating ©ffand a member of the Board of Directors of C@@gb.com, an Internet company. Fi
November 1998 to April 1999 he was Chief Operaffficer of WirelessKnowledge, Inc., a joint ventwempany formed between Micros:
and Qualcomm, Inc. From November 1996 to NovemB881Mr. DeBello held positions as Vice Presidéssistant General Manager and
General Manager of Qualcomm, Inc.’s Eudora InteBwtware Division, and
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Vice President of Product Management of Qualconmt,'$ Subscriber Equipment Division. Mr. DeBelldd®a B.A., magna cum laude and
an MBA from Harvard Business School and was a Rddaholar at the University of Singapore wheretheied economics and Chinese.

Mr. DeBello has over 15 years of experience inagisenior executive positions, including chiefatve officer, at other global technology
companies. As a director of the Company for appnately 17 years and in his unique role in the dagldy operations of the Company as our
President and Chief Executive Officer since 2008, DEBello has gained extensive knowledge of tldeigtries in which we operate, allowing
him to bring to the Board of Directors a broad ustinding of the operational and strategic issae®f the Company.

Russell C. ClarkMr. Clark has served as our Chief Financial Offisieice October 2011. Prior to joining Mitek, fromdyJ2006 to June
2011, Mr. Clark served in various roles, most rélge®enior Vice President, Finance, at Epicor SafevCorporation, a leading global provider
of enterprise business software solutions for mitketasized companies. While at Epicor, he provifiedncial leadership in connection with
raising growth capital, consummating acquisitiond hetter aligning Epicor’s operating expenses Vtithevenues. From August 2004 to June
2006, he served as Chief Accounting Officer at §eme Systems, Inc., a global provider of entegssftware for information technology
service and asset management, where he provideakcfad leadership in connection with the succedsiul-around of Peregrine. From August
2002 to August 2004, he served as Vice PresidémanEe and Corporate Controller of FICO (formerairAsaac Corporation), a global
provider of enterprise analytic software solutiansl credit scores, where he was a key member aé#me that consummated the merger of
FICO and HNC Software, Inc., a global provider nfegprise analytic software, and was responsibiéntegrating the operations of those
companies following the merger, as well as playrgy role in other acquisitions. From January 2@0AQugust 2002, Mr. Clark served in
various roles, including as Senior Vice Presid€at;porate Finance, at HNC Software. From AugusOli®anuary 2000, Mr. Clark began
career at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, where henaosttly served as a senior manager in the tecgpahdustry group. Mr. Clark holds a
bachelor’'s degree in business administration witlemphasis in accounting from The University of éoand is a certified public accountant.

Vinton P. CunninghamMr. Cunningham has served as a director since 208%. He served as Senior Vice President Finahce o
EdVision Corporation, a provider of curriculum dmnent and assessment tools for the education covitynfrom 1993 until his retirement
in 2002. Mr. Cunningham was Chief Operating Offiaad Chief Financial Officer of Founders Club Gotmpany, a golf equipment
manufacturer, from 1990 to 1993. He was Vice Pediffinance of Amcor Capital, Inc., a company tirganized and managed real estate
syndications, from 1985 to 1990. Mr. Cunningham ®agef Financial Officer and Treasurer of SupeRarming Company, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Superior Oil Company, an indepenadé&etmical supplier and fiberglass distributor, frd@81 to 1985. Mr. Cunningham holds a
B.S. in accounting from the University of South€&alifornia. The Board believes Mr. Cunningham’saficial background provides our Board
of Directors with valuable financial and accountexpertise and makes him well suited to serve erAtidit Committee of our Board of
Directors. Having served as a member of our Bo&fdir@ctors since 2005, Mr. Cunningham has a stnamgerstanding of our business,
operations, and culture.

Gerald I. Farmer. Dr. Farmer has served as a director since May 59@ served as our Executive Vice President fravelhber 1992
until June 1997. Prior to joining Mitek, from Jampd 987 to November 1992, Dr. Farmer was Executiiee President of HNC Software, Inc.,
a global provider of enterprise analytic softwdneaddition, he has held senior management positicith IBM Corporation, Xerox, SAIC and
Gould Imaging and Graphics. Dr. Farmer holds a Bi8hemistry from the University of Wyoming and/eS. and Ph.D. in physics and
mathematics from the University of Wisconsin, MatisThe Board believes Dr. Farmer’s extensive casea leader of several technology-
based companies makes him well qualified to serveuws Board of Directors. Having served the Compaspoth an executive officer and a
director since 1992, Dr. Farmer has a deep undefistg of both our technology and the industries/irich we operate.

Alex W. “Pete” Hart. Mr. Hart has served as a director since Febrg@fyl. He is currently Chairman of the SVB FinanGabup and
has worked as an independent consultant to thediabservices industry since
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1997. He served as Chief Executive Officer of AdaaDorporation, a public diversified financial Sees company, from 1995 to 1997, where
he had previously served as Executive Vice Chairfran 1994 to 1995. Prior to joining Advanta, heswresident and Chief Executive
Officer of MasterCard International, a worldwideyp@ent service provider, from 1988 to 1994. Mr. Hantrently serves as an advisor to a
number of private companies, including NoLie MRimBal Technologies and US Encode. In addition ®@3WB Financial Group, Mr. Hart is
currently a member of the board of directors offtiilewing public companies: Fair Isaac Corporatiarpredictive software company, Global
Payments, Inc., a payment services company, anér&er Holdings, Inc., an electronics company. Martthas also previously served as a
member of the board of directors of the followirggrpanies: HNC Software, Inc., Retek Inc., Shopgiogn, Sanchez Computer Associates,
US Encode, eHarmony.com and Sequal TechnologiesMn Hart holds a B.A. in social relations fronaitard University. As an experienced
leader in the financial services industry, havietdhvarious positions with Advanta and MasterCMd,Hart combines extensive general
business expertise with a deep knowledge of thenfiial services and payments industry. His expeeiem the boards of directors of other
companies in the financial services industry furtniggments his range of knowledge, providing exggex@ on which he can draw while serving
as a member of our Board of Directors.

Sally B. Thornton Mrs. Thornton has served as a director sincel AB88. From 1987 until 1996, she served as ChairafidMedical
Materials, Inc., a composite plastics manufactuvls. Thornton served as a director of Micom Systelmc. from 1976 to 1988. She has also
been a Trustee of the Sjorgren’s Syndrome Foundaiidlew York. Mrs. Thornton is a Life Trustee betSan Diego Museum of Art, is on the
board of directors of Thornton Winery Corporationliemecula, California, and is the Chairman oflblen M. and Sally B. Thornton
Foundation. Mrs. Thornton is married to John M. fitton, our Chairman. Mrs. Thornton holds an A.Anfr Stephens College and a B.A. and
M.A. in history from the University of San DiegosA director since 1988, Mrs. Thornton has in-dépthwledge of our company and our
technology. Mrs. Thornton also brings to our Boaf@irectors her extensive leadership experienca disector and trustee of both for-profit
and non-profit organizations.

William P. Tudor. Mr. Tudor has served as a director since Septe@di#. Since September 2011, he has served avésident,
Strategic Implementation of Northwest Evaluatiorsédation, a not-for-profit organization engagedi@vising formative testing systems for
children. From 2005 to 2011, he served as Presmfdnternational Learning Corporation, an eduasicassessment and evaluation company.
From July 2002 to July 2005, he served as ExecMige President of Scantron Corporation, a provifgsroducts and services that allow for
the capture of student performance data, and frore 1990 to July 2002, he served as Chief Exec@ifieer of EdVision Corporation, a
provider of curriculum development and assessnuais for the education community. Mr. Tudor holdB.8. in business administration from
the University of Detroit. The Board believes Mudbr’s background as a technology entrepreneusaftdare executive at both public and
private companies gives him the experience necgssaerve on our Board of Directors.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compdince

Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act requires ouccef and directors and persons who beneficially mare than 10% of a registered
class of our equity securities to file initial refmof ownership and reports of changes in ownprehsuch securities with the SEC. Officers,
directors and greater than 10% beneficial ownergexquired by SEC regulations to furnish us withies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.
Based solely on a review of Forms 3, 4 and 5, aneénaiments thereto, furnished to us and certairemriepresentations that no other reports
were required during fiscal 2011, we are not avedir@ny director, officer or greater than 10% beciafiowner that failed to file on a timely
basis, as disclosed on such forms, reports reqbiyegkection 16(a) of the Exchange Act during fil 1, except that one Form 4 was not
timely filed for each of Mr. DeBello and Mr. and MfThornton.
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Code of Ethics

We have adopted the Mitek Systems, Inc. Finanaiale®f Professional Conduct (the “Finance Codetbicg”), a code of ethics that
applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Ficgl Officer and other finance organization empleg.eThe Finance Code of Ethics is
publicly available on our website at www.miteksystecom, under “About Us”. We will provide a copy of thénBnce Code of Ethics, free of
charge, to any stockholder upon written requesutoCorporate Secretary at Mitek Systems, Inc.1834lboa Ave., Suite B, San Diego, CA
92123. If we make any amendments to the Finance @b#thics or grant any waiver, including any imjplwaiver, from a provision of the
code to our Chief Executive Office or Chief FinaleDfficer that requires disclosure under appliegBEC rules, we intend to disclose the
nature of such amendment or waiver on our website.

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expett

We have a separately-designated standing Audit dtieerestablished in accordance with Section 3&§&) of the Exchange Act. Our
Audit Committee is comprised of Messrs. Cunningh&armer, and Tudor. Mr. Cunningham serves as Claairof the Audit Committee. Our
Board of Directors has determined that Mr. Cunnamghqualifies as an “audit committee financial eXpieraccordance with applicable SEC
rules and regulations and is “independent” underctiiteria established by applicable NASDAQ ListRRgles, as well as applicable SEC rules
and regulations.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth certain informatiooncerning cash and non-cash compensation earnedrtiyhief Executive Officer, our
only named executive officer for the fiscal yeanded September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Total

Option All Other Compensatior
Awards Compensation
Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($) Bonus ($) ($)(1) ($)(2) $)
James B. DeBello, 2011 $353,93¢ $352,17:(3) $912,05° $ 1,02¢ $1,619,19
President, and CE( 201( $335,35° $ 85,257(4) $ 92,19t $ 74& $ 513,55

(1) Represents the grant date fair value of opdiwards in the year indicated, computed in accomanth Financial Accounting Standards
Board (“FASB”") Accounting Standards Codificatio’ASC") Topic 718,Compensation — Stock CompensaffthSC 718"). A discussiol
of the assumptions used in calculating the gratd fiar value is set forth in Note 4 to our finaadtatements included in this Form-K.

(2) Represents group term life insurance premiums gaidehalf of Mr. DeBello

(3) Represents a discretionary bonus, approved by oard3of Directors, of (i) $350,172, in recognitiohour compan’s improvec
performance and (ii) $2,000, with respect to a miateat we filed in 2011

(4) Represents a discretionary bonus, approved by oardBof Directors, of (i) $84,242, in recognitiohour compan’s improvec
performance and (ii) $1,015, with respect to a miteat we filed in 201C
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Outstanding Equity Awards at September 30, 2011

The following table presents the outstanding opsiasards held by the named executive officer asept&nber 30, 2011:

Option Awards(1)
Equity
Incentive
Plan Awards
Number of
Securities Number of Number of
Underlying Securities Securities Option
Unexercisec Underlying Underlying Exercise
Unexercised Unexercisec Option
Options (#) Options (#) Unearned Price Expiration
Name Exercisable Unexercisable Options ($) Date(2)
James B. DeBello 400,00( — — $ 1.0¢ 05/19/1:
400,00( — = $ 0.5C 11/17/1¢
100,00( — = $ 0.8C 10/19/1¢
100,00( — = $ 0.82 11/18/1¢
150,00((3) — — $ 1.1¢ 07/10/1¢
450,00( — = $ 0.3t 12/04/1°
214,41( 34,59((4) — $ 0.0¢ 02/25/1¢
131,93¢ 118,0645) — $ 0.7¢ 02/24/2(
59,47( 297,36((6) — $ 2.6( 11/15/2(
(1) Unless otherwise noted, 1/36th of the shares sutgjezach option award vest monthly from the ddtgrant. Vesting is accelerated

(2)

(3)
(4)

(5)
(6)

certain circumstances. See the section ent'Employment Arrangements and Executive Severance&Caadge of Control Pla” below.
The option awards remain exercisable until theyirexpO years from the date of grant, subject tdiexagxpiration in connection with
termination of employmen

The shares subject to the option award becameisable immediately on the date of gre

The date of grant is February 25, 2009. The undesitares subject to the option award as of Septedih011 will continue to vest
equal monthly installments and will be fully vestal February 25, 201

The date of grant is February 24, 2010. Theessted shares subject to the option award as oé®éyetr 30, 2011 will continue to vest in
equal monthly installments and will be fully vestad February 24, 201

1/60th of the shares subject to the option dwaist monthly from November 15, 2010, the datgraht. The unvested shares subject to
the option award as of September 30, 2011 willicoetto vest in equal monthly installments and wélfully vested on November 15,
2015.
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Employment Arrangements and Executive Severance andhange of Control Plans
James B. DeBello

On February 28, 2011, we entered into an Execi@&serance and Change of Control Plan with Jam&seBello, our President and
Chief Executive Officer (the “DeBello SeverancerPJaWe do not have any employment agreement withD&Bello.

Under the terms of the DeBello Severance Plangifevminate Mr. DeBello’s employment without Caosé Mr. DeBello terminates
his employment for Good Reason, Mr. DeBello willdrgitled to receive: (i) a lump-sum cash amounta¢tp his then-current annual base
salary; (ii) a lump-sum cash amount equal to 12 thebpf premium payments for continuation coveragaen the Company’s health plans; and
(iiif) accelerated vesting of 50% of all outstandewpity awards then held by Mr. DeBello. If Mr. D& is terminated without Cause or
terminates his employment for Good Reason at ang twithin two months prior or 24 months followingCaange of Control, Mr. DeBello wi
be entitled to receive a lump-sum cash amount gqu&d months of premium payments for continuatiomerage under the Company’s health
plans.

In addition, the DeBello Severance Plan provides iththe event of a Change of Control of the Comypdr. DeBello will be entitled to
receive: (i) a lump-sum cash amount equal to tw$ his then-current annual base salary, with @ifeshsuch amount being paid on the date
of the consummation of the Change of Control aretloalf of such amount being paid on the date thaibd months following the
consummation of the change of control; and (ii)edexated vesting of 100% of all outstanding eqaityards then held by Mr. DeBello. As of
September 30, 2011, no such termination or Chah@®utrol event, as defined in the DeBello Seveeatan, had occurred that required the
Company to make an accrual related to the DeBeal@fnce Plan in the financial statements includekdis Form 10-K.

For purposes of the DeBello Severance Plan andk Slaverance Plan (as defined below):

» “Caust” generally means: (i) any material failure on the p&the executive to faithfully and professiogadharry out his duties
subject to a 10-day cure period; (ii) the execusiishonesty or other willful misconduct, if sudishonesty or other willful
misconduct is intended to or likely to materialjure the business of the Company; (iii) the exeelg conviction of any felony or
of any other crime involving moral turpitude; (ihje executive’s insobriety or illegal use of drugsemicals or controlled
substances in the course of performing his dutielsrasponsibilities or otherwise materially affagthis ability to perform the
same; and (v) any wanton or willful derelictionchfties by the executiv:

» “Good Reasc” generally means: (i) the Comp#¢ s breach of any of the material terms of the sexeglan; (ii) the Compa’'s
relocating its offices at which the executive igiatly principally employed to a location more th&0 miles from both the
executive’s residence and the offices of the Compand that reassignment materially and adverdédgts the executive’s
commute and the executive is required to commuseith location without the executive’s written cemis (jii) a material
diminution in the executive’s duties or respondiigi or conditions of employment from those ireetfon the effective date of the
severance plan; (iv) any reductions which, in thgragate, are more than 10% of the executive’s alsey in effect when any
reduction is first imposed without the executivetssent (other than such a reduction or reducppicable generally to other
senior executives of the Company); provided, howebat the executive must provide the Company wititten notice of the
executive’s intent to terminate his employment ardscription of the event which the executivedwels constitutes Good Reason
within 60 days after the initial existence of themet, subject to a 30-day cure period in favorhef Company, and if the default is
not cured, the executive must terminate within 89sdof the end of the cure peri

» “Change of Control”generally means the occurrence of any of the faligvevents: (i) any person or group (within the rieg of
Section 13(d) or 14(d), as applicable, of the ExgeaAct) (a “Person”), becomes the “beneficial oifas defined in Rule 13d-3
under the Exchange Act) of securit
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representing 50% or more of the voting power oftben outstanding securiti€* Company Voting Securiti”’); (ii) the
consummation of a share exchange or a merger @otidation of the Company, where the Persons whe W& beneficial owners
of Company Voting Securities outstanding immediatelor to such transaction do not beneficially omvore than 50% of the
voting securities of the Company or the Acquiringn@pany (as defined in the DeBello Severance Plamjddiately after such
transaction in substantially the same proportianghair ownership of Company Voting Securities indiagely prior to such
transaction; (iii) a sale or other disposition tfoa substantially all of our assets; or (iv) sughe as the Continuing Directors (as
defined in the DeBello Severance Plan) do not donstat least a majority of our Board of Directus, if applicable, of the board
of directors of a successor to the Compa

Russell C. Clark

On October 11, 2011, we entered into a letter gfleyment (“Clark Employment Letter”) and an ExewgetiSeverance and Change of
Control Plan (the “Clark Severance Plan”) with Rals€. Clark, our Chief Financial Officer.

Pursuant to the terms of the Clark Employment leelit. Clark’s initial base salary will be $225,080d he will be eligible for an annual
bonus of up to $75,000, based upon meeting mutagliged upon annual objectives. In connection highappointment, Mr. Clark was gran
an incentive stock option to purchase an aggregf260,000 shares of our common stock at an exeprise of $9.97, the closing price of our
common stock, as reported on the NASDAQ Capitalketaron October 11, 2011. The option was grantettuour 2010 Stock Option Plan
and form of stock option award agreement adoptedde thereunder and vests monthly over three yeaegldition, upon the six month
anniversary of his employment with us, Mr. Clarklwe eligible to receive an additional option targhase up to 50,000 shares of the our
common stock based on his performance.

The Clark Severance Plan provides that if we teateiMr. Clark’s employment without Cause or if Miark terminates his employment
for Good Reason (i) at any time within the first@®ys of his employment, Mr. Clark will be entitledreceive (A) a lump-sum cash amount
equal to 25% of his then-current annual base sa|Bjya lump-sum cash amount equal to three mawitipsemium payments for continuation
coverage under the Company’s health plans, and¢@lerated vesting of 10% of all outstanding goantards then held by Mr. Clark; (ii) at
any time during the period commencing on his 9astaf employment and ending on his 180th day ofleympent, Mr. Clark will be entitled
to receive (A) a lump-sum cash amount equal to 50%s then-current annual base salary, (B) a lwmmcash amount equal to six months of
premium payments for continuation coverage undeiGmpany’s health plans, and (C) acceleratedngesti 25% of all outstanding equity
awards then held by Mr. Clark; and (iii) at any ¢imn or after his 181st day of employment, Mr. Klaill be entitled to receive (A) a lump-
sum cash amount equal to his then-current annsal ®alary; (B) a lump-sum cash amount equal to d2ms of premium payments for
continuation coverage under the Company’s heaithgyland (C) accelerated vesting of 50% of alltanting equity awards then held by
Mr. Clark. If Mr. Clark is terminated without Caueeterminates his employment for Good Reason watiare within two months prior to a
Change of Control and he has not received or i€nfiled to receive any payments under clausé d(i)(ii)” above, Mr. Clark will be entitled
to receive the benefits set forth in clause “(i@ove, except that his outstanding equity awaitlvest 100%.

In addition, the Clark Severance Plan providesithéte event of a Change of Control of the Compaty Clark will be entitled to
receive: (i) a lump-sum cash amount equal to lés-turrent annual base salary, with one-half ohsamount being paid on the date of the
consummation of the Change of Control and onedfafich amount being paid on the date that is siwths following the consummation of
the Change of Control; and (ii) accelerated vestih§j00% of all outstanding equity awards then HsidMr. Clark. In addition, if Mr. Clark is
terminated without Cause or terminates his employrfee Good Reason at any time within 24 monthkfeing a Change of Control,

Mr. Clark will be entitled to receive a lump-sunshaamount equal to 12 months of premium paymemtsdietinuation coverage under the
Company'’s health plans.
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Non-Employee Director Compensation

Historically, we have paid our Chairman $12,480arannual basis for his attendance at our boardimyseAll other non-employee
directors have historically been paid $1,500 fairtlttendance at our regularly scheduled boarding=eand $500 for each committee mee
attended. In September 2011, the cash compensioed by non-employee directors was increased,@8 for each regularly scheduled
board meeting attended, except for our Chairmaio, wili receive $100,000 on an annual basis in iéa per meeting fee. In addition, the ¢
compensation earned by each non-employee direesinereased to $1,000 for each committee meetiagded. We also reimburse our non-
employee directors for their reasonable expensesried in attending board and committee meetings.Members of our Board of Directors
are eligible for reimbursement of expenses incuimezbnnection with their service on the board. Nbens of our Board of Directors who are
also employees of the Company receive no compemstati their services as a director.

The following table sets forth summary informatmmcerning compensation paid or accrued for seswierdered to us in all capacities
to the members of our Board of Directors for tleedil year ended September 30, 2011:

Fees

Earned or Option All Other Total

Stock Awards Compensatior Compensatior
Paid in Awards

Name Cash ($) $)(1) $)(2) (©IE)] %)
John M. Thorntor $17,76¢ $256,00( $ — $ 24,78 $ 298,55«
Gerald I. Farme $13,50( $256,00( $ — $ — $ 269,50(
William P. Tudor $12,00( $256,00( $— $ — $ 268,00(
Vinton P. Cunninghar $11,00( $256,00( $ — $ — $ 267,00(
Sally B. Thorntor $ 9,00( $256,00( $ — $ — $ 265,00(
Alex W. “Pet¢’ Hart $ 8,50( $256,00( $ — $ — $ 264,50(
Michael W. Bealmear (< $ 2,50( $ — $— $ — $  2,50(

(1) The amount shown under the “Stock Awards” calumequal to the aggregate grant date fair valuestricted stock units (“RSUs”")
granted to each director during the fiscal yearl2€dmputed in accordance with ASC 718, excludimgefiect of any estimated
forfeitures. As of September 30, 2011, the aggeegatnber of RSUs outstanding was 50,000 for eatheofollowing directors:

Mr. Thornton, Mr. Cunningham, Mr. Farmer, Mr. Havtrs. Thornton, and Mr. Tudor. A discussion of #esumptions used in calculat
the grant date fair value is set forth in Note 4t financial statements included in this Forr-K.

(2) There were no option awards granted during/deg ended September 30, 2011. As of Septembe03Q, our directors held outstanding
options to purchase the following number of shafesommon stock: John M. Thornton, 50,000 sharéstovi P. Cunningham, 50,000
shares; Gerald I. Farmer, 50,000 shares; Alex Wteé’PHart, 50,000 shares; Sally B. Thornton, 50,888res; and William P. Tudor,
50,000 share:

(3) Represents medical and group term life insuranemjums paid on behalf of Mr. Thorntc

(4) Mr. Bealmear resigned from our Board of DirectonsF@bruary 18, 201

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

The following table presents information concerning beneficial ownership of the shares of our camistock as of November 30,
2011, by:

» each person we know to be the beneficial ownef610% more of our outstanding shares of common si
e our named executive officer and current directars]
« all of our current executive officers and directassa group
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Information with respect to beneficial ownershifésed solely on a review of our capital stockdfanrecords and on publicly available
filings made with the SEC by or on behalf of thecgholders listed below. The address for all exgeutfficers and directors is c/o Mitek
Systems, Inc., 8911 Balboa Ave., Suite B, San Di€y092123.

Percentage of beneficial ownership is calculatestian the 24,530,209 shares of common stock adistaon November 30, 2011.
Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandh wie rules of the SEC which generally attribut@dficial ownership of securities to
persons who possess sole or shared voting or meastpower with respect to those securities anlddes shares of our common stock issu
pursuant to the exercise of stock options or atkeurities that are exercisable or convertible @htares of our common stock within 60 days of
November 30, 2011. We did not deem these sharstaoding, however, for the purpose of computingpieentage ownership of any otl
person. Except as indicated by the footnotes belmbelieve, based on the information availableggothat the persons and entities named in
the table below have sole voting and investmentgramith respect to all shares of common stock shasvheneficially owned by them, subj
to applicable community property laws.

Beneficial Ownership of Common

Stock

Number of Percent of
Name of Beneficial Owner or Identify of Group Shares Class
Named Executive Officer and Directol
James B. DeBello (1 1,845,041 7.0(%
John M. and Sally B. Thornton ( 2,555,42! 10.3%
Alex W. “Pet¢’ Hart (3) 141,90( *
William P. Tudor (4) 119,17 *
Gerald I. Farmer (£ 84,17 *
Vinton P. Cunningham (€ 79,17:¢ *
Directors and Executive Officers as a Group (eigtiividuals) (7) 4,836,00! 18.1(%
Five Percent Stockholder
John M. and Sally B. Thornton ( 2,555,42! 10.31%
James B. DeBello (1 1,845,041 7.00%
Prescott Group Capital Management, L.L.C. 1,666,98! 6.8(%
Hyonmyong Cho (9 1,262,171 5.15%

* Less than 1%

(1) Consists of options to purchase 1,845,048 sharesrofmon stock that are exercisable within 60 ddys$avember 30, 2011

(2) Consists of 2,437,081 shares held in a family trmstvhich Mr. and Mrs. Thornton are -trustees, options to purchase 100,000 shar
common stock that are exercisable within 60 daysafember 30, 2011 and 18,348 RSUs that will vegtiw60 days of November 30,
2011.

(3) Consists of 82,726 shares held directly, optionsu@hase 50,000 shares of common stock that areisable within 60 days
November 30, 2011 and 9,174 RSUs that will veshiwi60 days of November 30, 20:

(4) Consists of 60,000 shares held directly, optionsui@hase 50,000 shares of common stock that areisable within 60 days !
November 30, 2011 and 9,174 RSUs that will veshiwi60 days of November 30, 20:

(5) Consists of 25,000 shares held directly, ogimnpurchase 50,000 shares of common stock teaarcisable within 60 days of
November 30, 2011 and 9,174 RSUs that will veshiwi60 days of November 30, 20:

(6) Consists of 45,000 shares held directly, optionsut@hase 25,000 shares of common stock that areisable within 60 days
November 30, 2011 and 9,174 RSUs that will veshiwi60 days of November 30, 20:
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(7) Comprised of shares included un“Named Executive Officer and Direct” and options to purchase 11,110 shares of commaok
held by one of our other executive officers that exercisable within 60 days of November 30, 2!

(8) The foregoing information is based solely uptibrmation contained in a Schedule 13G/A filedRngscott Group Capital Management,
L.L.C. (“Prescott Capital”), Prescott Group AggrigssSmall Cap, L.P. (“Prescott Small Cap”), Pres@bup Aggressive Small Cap II,
L.P. (“Prescott Small Cap 11" and together with $tett Small Cap, the “Small Cap Funds”) and Mr] Prohlich, the principal of
Prescott Capital, with the SEC on February 14, 2018 respect to holdings of common stock as ofddelser 31, 2007. Prescott Capital
serves as the general partner of the Small Capsramd may direct the Small Cap Funds, the genaraigrs of Prescott Group
Aggressive Small Cap Master Fund, G.P. (“Prescatster Fund”), to direct the vote and dispositiomhef 1,666,985 shares of common
stock held by Prescott Master Fund. As the prin@p&rescott Capital, Mr. Frohlich may direct tte and disposition of the 1,666,985
shares of common stock held by Prescott Master Flimd stockholde' s address is 1924 South Utica, Suite 1120, Tulka741 046529

(9) The foregoing information is based solely updiormation contained in a Schedule 13G filed by, Myonmyong Cho with the SEC on
February 17, 2011 with respect to holdings of commstock as of December 31, 2010. Comprised of 18PA0shares of common stock
and warrants to purchase up to 71,354 shares afhoonstock that are exercisable within 60 days ofévaber 30, 2011. Mr. Cho has
shared power to direct the vote and dispositio82%,747 shares of common stock and sole poweréegtdhe vote and disposition of the
remaining shares. This stockhol's address is 961 Paseo del Sur, Santa Fe, New &/8%&01.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE.
Transactions with Related Persons

Other than as described under “Executive Compensatibove, we have not entered into any transagtiorseries of transactions since
October 1, 2009, and we are not currently congidesiny proposed transaction, in which the amourglired in the transaction or series of
transactions exceeds the lesser of $120,000 opement of the average of our total assets atgmdifor the last two completed fiscal years,
and in which any of our directors, executive officer persons who we know beneficially held moantfive percent of any class of our
common stock, including their immediate family meard) had or will have a direct or indirect matenigérest.

Director Independence

Our Board of Directors has determined that eadiedsrs. Cunningham, Farmer, Hart and Tudor areepeddent” under the criteria
established by applicable NASDAQ Listing Rulesatidition, our Board of Directors has determined tha members of the Audit Committee
of our Board of Directors meet the additional ineleglence criteria required for audit committee mensttip.
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ITEM 14.  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES.
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Feerlformation

The following table sets forth the aggregate faksdby Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C., our independegjistered public accounting

firm, for the services indicated for the fiscal yeanded September 30, 2011 and 2010:

Fiscal Year Endec

September 30, 201

Fiscal Year Endec

September 30, 201

Audit Fees (1 $ 147,00( $ 129,30(
Audit-Related Fee — —
Tax Fees — —
All Other Fees — —
Total Fees $ 147,00( $ 129,30(

(1) Includes fees for (i) the audit of our annual fioi@h statements for the fiscal years ended Septe8he2011 and 2010 included in ¢
annual reports on Form 10-K; (ii) the review of auterim period financial statements for the tteeéil years ended September 30, 2011
and 2010 included in our quarterly reports on F&@¥Q; and (iii) related services that are normphgvided in connection with
regulatory filings or engagemen

Pre-Approval Policies

The Audit Committee of our Board of Directors hatablished policies and procedures by which it apgs in advance any audit and
permissible noraudit services to be provided by our independagistered public accounting firm. Under these pebcand procedures, priol
the engagement of the independent registered padtiounting firm for pre-approved services, requestapplications for the independent
registered public accounting firm to provide seegiecnust be submitted to the Audit Committee and imetude a detailed description of the
services to be rendered. Our chief financial offeed the independent registered public accouritimgmust ensure that the independent
registered public accounting firm is not engagepeadorm the proposed services unless those seraigewithin the list of services that have
received the Audit Committee’s pepproval, and must cause the Audit Committee tmfmemed in a timely manner of all services rendeg
the independent registered public accounting fina the related fees.

Each request or application must include:
« arecommendation by our chief financial officet@svhether the Audit Committee should approve #wpiest or application; at

* ajoint statement of our chief financial officerdatine independent registered public accounting &smio whether, in their view, tl
request or application is consistent with the SE€giirements for auditor independence of the Bultimpany Accounting
Oversight Board“PCAOE").

The Audit Committee also will not permit the indegent registered public accounting firm to be ergligp provide any services to the
extent that the SEC has prohibited the provisiotho$e services by an independent registered pabticunting firm, which generally include:
» bookkeeping or other services related to accoumtgngrds or financial statemen
» financial information systems design and implemtora
» appraisal or valuation services, fairness opinmmsontributiol-in-kind reports
* actuarial services
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« internal audit outsourcing service

e management function

¢ human resource

¢ broker~dealer, investment adviser or investment bankimngices;
* legal services

e expert services unrelated to the audit;

e any service that the PCAOB determines is not pesityies
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PART IV

ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES.
(2)(1) Financial Statements

The Financial Statements of Mitek Systems, Inc.Rafort of Independent Registered Public Accourfiiing, are included in a separate
section of this Form 10-K beginning on page F-1.

(2)(2) Financial Statement Schedules

As a smaller reporting company, as defined by 8acD(f)(1) of Regulation S-K, we are not requitegrovide the information set forth
in this item.

(a)(3) Exhibits
Incorporated by

Reference from

Exhibit No. Description Document
3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Mitek Syss, Inc. (1)
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Mitek Systems, 2)
4.1 Form of debenture issued on December 10, 2 3)
4.2 Form of warrant issued on December 10, 2( 3)

10.1 Mitek Systems, Inc. 1999 Stock Option Pl 4)

10.2 Mitek Systems, Inc. 2000 Stock Option PI (5)

10.3 Mitek Systems, Inc. 2002 Stock Option Pl (6)

10.4 Mitek Systems, Inc. 2006 Stock Option PI @)

10.5 Mitek Systems, Inc. 2010 Stock Option PI (10)

10.6 Mitek Systems, Inc. Director Restricted Stock URIan. (11)

10.7 Mitek Systems, Inc. 401(k) Savings PI (8)

10.8 Stock Option Agreement, dated May 19, 2003, bylzetdieen James B. DeBello and Mi *

Systems, Inc., as amend:
10.9 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Deeefrth 2009, between Mitek Syster 3)
Inc. and certain accredited investc

10.10 Form of Security Agreement dated, December 10, 2088veen Mitek Systems, Inc. and 3)

certain secured partie
10.11 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated Séete®®, 2010, between Mitek Systems, 9)
Inc. and certain accredited investc

10.12 Executive Severance and Change in Control Plaeddatbruary 28, 2011, by and betw: (12)
Mitek Systems, Inc. and James B. DeBe

10.13 Offer Letter, dated October 3, 2011, by and betwdgeak Systems, Inc. and Russell (13)
Clark.

10.14 Executive Severance and Change in Control Plaeddattober 11, 2011, by and betw: (13)
Mitek Systems, Inc. and Russell C. Cle

10.15 Form of Executive Severance and Change in Contanl. (12)

10.16 Form of Indemnification Agreemer (12)
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Incorporated by

Reference from

Exhibit No. Description Document

10.17 Form of Securities Purchase Agreement, dated M29p51, between Mitek Systems, Inc. and 14)
certain accredited investol

23.1 Consent of Mayer Hoffman McCann P. *

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on the signature pa *

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer PursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange *
Act of 1934.

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer PursuantRule 13-14(a) of the Securities Exchan *
Act of 1934.

32.1 Certification Chief Executive Officer and Chief Bimcial Pursuant to Section 906 of *
Sarbane-Oxley Act of 2002

101** Financial statements from the Annual Report on Fboa< of Mitek Systems, Inc. for the ye *

*%

(1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)

(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)

ended September 30, 2011, formatted in XBRL: @)Balance Sheets, (ii) the Statements of
Operations, (iii) the Statements of Cash Flows, ttie Notes to the Financial Stateme

Filed herewith

Pursuant to Rule 406T of Regulatio-T, this interactive data file is deemed not filedoart of a registration statement or prospectu:
purposes of Sections 11 or 12 of the SecuritiesoAd933, is deemed not filed for purposes of secli8 of the Exchange Act of 1934,
and otherwise is not subject to liability undergheections

Incorporated by reference to the Comf’s Registration Statement on For-3 (File No. 33-177965) filed with the SEC ¢
November 14, 201:

Incorporated by reference to the Comg’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended September 30, 1!

Incorporated by reference to the Comy’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on December 16, 20

Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to thenfany' s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the SEC on June 11, 19
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to then@Gany's Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the SEC on March 30, 20
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to thenfany' s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the SEC on July 7, 20C
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to thenfany' s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the SEC on May 3, 20(
Incorporated by reference to the exhibits to then@Gany's Registration Statement on Form-2 filed with the SEC on July 9, 19¢
Incorporated by reference to the Comy’s Annual Report on Form -K for the fiscal year ended September, 30, 20Ha fitith the
SEC on November 16, 201

Incorporated by reference to the Com(’s Registration Statement on Fori-8 filed with the SEC on March 14, 201

Incorporated by reference to Appendix A to the Cany's Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SECJamuary 18, 201:
Incorporated by reference to the Comy’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on March 1, 201

Incorporated by reference to the Comy’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on October 13, 20:

Incorporated by reference to the Comy’s Current Report on Forn-K filed with the SEC on May 9, 201
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, there datp authorized.

December 15, 201 MITEK SYSTEMS, INC.

By: Is/ James B. De Bell
James B. DeBello
President and Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pembhose signature appears below hereby severatistitates and
appoints James B. DeBello and Russell C. Clarkohfser true and lawful agent and attorney-in-facth full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or hemea place and stead, in any and all capacitiesgtoany and all amendments to this report, and
to file the same, with all exhibits thereto, antdestdocuments in connection therewith, with the @assion, granting unto said attorney-in-fact
full power and authority to do and perform each awnery act and thing requisite or necessary fallglt intents and purposes as he or she r
or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirgnall that said attorney-in-fact and agent ordritier substitute or substitutes, may lawfully
do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xga Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and orddtes indicated.

/s/ James B. DeBel President and Chief Executive Officer ¢ December 15, 201
James B. DeBell Director (Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Russell C. Clar Chief Financial Office December 15, 201
Russell C. Clarl (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s/ John M. Thornton Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director December 15, 2011

John M. Thorntol

/sl Alex P. Hart Director December 15, 2011
Alex P. Harl
/s/ Vinton P. Cunningham Director December 15, 2011

Vinton P. Cunninghar

/s/ Gerald |. Farmer Director December 15, 2011
Gerald I. Farme

/sl Sally B. Thornton Director December 15, 2011
Sally B. Thorntor
/s/ William P. Tudor Director December 15, 2011
William P. Tudor
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Mitek Systems, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance shedige Systems, Inc. as of September 30, 2011 ad@28nd the related statements of
operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flowdtieryears then ended. These financial statementha responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these financial statements based on outsaud

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstais of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBlgUnited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to sbteasonable assurance about whether the finestatements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hawewere we engaged to perform, an audit of itsrivdl control over financial reporting.

Our audit included consideration of internal cohtreer financial reporting as a basis for desigranglit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgssimopinion on the effectiveness of the Compaimgernal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aullibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenppating the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredlbove present fairly, in all material respedts, financial position of Mitek Systems, Inc. as
of September 30, 2011 and 2010, and the resuits operations and its cash flows for the years #eded, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

/s/ Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C.
San Diego, California
December 15, 2011
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MITEK SYSTEMS, INC
BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current assett
Cash and cash equivalel
Shor-term investment
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $21,34d $6,003, respective
Deferred maintenance fe
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other currents
Total current asse
Long-term investment
Property and equipment, r
Software development costs, |
Other norcurrent assel

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related tax
Deferred revenu
Deferred rent, curret
Other accrued liabilitie
Total current liabilities
Convertible deb
Deferred rent, nc-current
Total liabilities
Stockholder’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 1,000,000 skarémrized, none issued and outstant
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 40,000,000 shartbe@zed, 24,144,366 and 17,816,:
issued and outstanding, respectiv
Additional paic-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Accumulated defici
Total stockholder equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

September 30

2011

2010

$ 5,655,711
10,187,63
2,956,29!
108,97
208,40¢
19,117,03
417,23(
196,51¢
91,43¢
29,46¢
$19,851,68

$ 358,90°
496,00¢
873,23(
9,19¢

35,99:
1,773,383

23,06
1,796,39.

24,14
33,660,39

(9,855)
(15,619,39)

18,055,29
$19,851,68

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéHenancial statements.
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$ 1,305,044
1,221,59!
93,331
87,33t
2,707,321

34,29:
228,59
38,24

$ 3,008,45

$ 228,51
196,53:
831,37.

9,19:
21,87(
1,287,48
679,80:
39,71¢
2,006,99

17,81¢
16,477,98

(15,494,33)
1,001,45!
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MITEK SYSTEMS, INC
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenue
Software
Maintenance and professional servi
Total revenu
Operating Costs and Expens
Cost of revent-software
Cost of revent-maintenance and professional servi
Selling and marketin
Research and developmt
General and administrati\
Total costs and expens
Operating Income (Los!
Other income (expense), n
Interest and other expense,
Interest incomt
Total other income (expense), |
Loss before income taxi
Provision for income taxe
Net loss

Net loss per sha—basic and dilute
Weighted average number of common shares outsig—basic and dilute:

For the years endec
September 30

2011

2010

$ 8,122,74. $ 3,210,66
2,143,23. 1,908,24.
10,265,97 5,118,90.

662,08( 514,92
509,65 435,22
2,410,71 929,68!
2,996,10 2,002,39!
3,431,02: 1,620,35
10,009,57 5,502,58!
256,39t (383,68!)
(427,54) (298,129
48,58t 1,79¢
(378,96)) (296,33()
(122,565 (680,01!)
(2,49) (2,339)

$ (125,05) $ (682,35)

$ (0.0 $  (0.09

21,506,50 16,946,26

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdéHfenancial statements.
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MITEK SYSTEMS, INC.
STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
For the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010

Common Accumulated
Stock Other Total
Outstanding Common " Accumulated Comprehensive Stockholders
Additional
Paid-In
(Shares) Stock Capital Deficit Loss Equity
Balance, September 30, 2009 16,751,13 $ 16,75 $14,920,99 $(14,811,98) $ — $ 125,76!
Discount on convertible de — — 627,63t — — 627,63t
Issuance of common sto 460,00( 46C 344,54( — — 345,00(
Exercise of warrant 163,64t 164 148,75! — — 148,91¢
Exercise of stock optior 72,48¢ 72 30,157 — — 30,22:
Cashless exercise of warra 300,01: 30C (300) — — —
Cashless exercise of stock optic 68,96¢ 69 (69) — — —
Stocl-based compensation expel — — 406,26¢ — — 406,26
Net loss — — — (682,35:) — (682,35:)
Balance, September 30, 2C 17,816,24 $ 17,81¢  $16,477,98 $(15,494,33) $ — $ 1,001,45
Conversion of debentur: 1,418,57: 1,41¢ 1,062,50° — — 1,063,92
Issuance of common sto 3,357,14. 3,357 14,592,00 — — 14,595,36
Exercise of warrant 41,66¢ 651 219,64¢ — — 220,29
Exercise of stock optior 651,95: 42 37,87t — — 37,917
Cashless exercise of warra 615,44 61€ (61€) — — —
Cashless exercise of stock optic 243,33( 242 (243) — — —
Stocl-based compensation expel — — 1,271,23i — — 1,271,233
Components of comprehensive incor
Net loss — — — (125,05) — (125,05)
Change in unrealized loss on investme — — — — (9,85%) (9,859
Total comprehensive lo: (134,91))
Balance, September 30, 2C 24,144,36 $ 24,144 $33,660,39 $(15,619,39) $ (9,855 $ 18,055,29

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdeHfenancial statements.
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MITEK SYSTEMS, INC
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash piexviby (used in) operating activiti
Stoclk-based compensation expel
Non-cash interest expense on convertible (
Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of capitalized debt issuance cc
Provision for bad debt
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Accounts receivabl
Deferred maintenance fe
Inventory, prepaid expenses and other a:
Accounts payabl
Accrued payroll and related tax
Deferred revenu
Deferred ren
Other accrued liabilitie
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activi
Investing activities
Purchases of investmer
Purchases of property and equipm
Net cash used in investing activiti
Financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, niesoénce costs of $1,154,634 and
respectively
Proceeds from exercise of stock opti
Proceeds from exercise of warra
Proceeds from the issuance of convertible -net
Net cash provided by financing activiti
Net increase in cash and cash equival
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informa
Cash paid for intere:

Cash paid for income tax

Supplemental disclosures of r-cash financing and investing activitit
Conversion of debt to common stc

Unrealized holding loss on available for sale inrents
Cashless exercise of options and warr

Beneficial conversion feature related to convegtitébt issue
Debt discount on convertible note due to warri

For the years endec

September 30,

2011 2010
$ (125,05) $ (682,35Y)
1,271,23! 406,26¢
384,12 294,88
179,29: 172,59¢
53,94¢ 36,38:
15,34( (18,265
(1,750,03)) (842,51)
(15,637 (32,659
(166,23f) 7,73¢
130,39: (127,79)
299,47¢ (9,66¢€)
41,85¢ 130,65¢
(16,655 (119,19)
14,12: (22,159
316,16¢ (806,064
(10,614,72) —
(204,35 (9,367
(10,819,08) (9,36%)
14,595,36 345,00(
220,29° 30,22
37,917 148,91¢
— 922,22:
14,853,58 1,446,36!
4,350,66 630,93
1,305,04! 674,11!
$ 5,655,71! $1,305,04!
$ 5,33: $ 2,54(
$ 2,492 $ 2,33¢
$ 1,063,92 $ —
$ 9,85t $ —
$ 85¢ $ 36¢
$ — $ 401,56¢
$ — $ 226,06¢

The accompanying notes form an integral part cdeHenancial statements.
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MITEK SYSTEMS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2011 AND 2010

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACC OUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

Mitek Systems, Inc. (the “Company”) is primarilygaged in the development, sale, and service pfdgrietary software solutions
related to its mobile imaging solutions and inggdht character recognition software. The Compatgchnology is currently used to process
checks by banks and is used in other markets fxialized applications.

The Company’s new mobile applications use its petary technology to capture and read data frontgshof documents taken using
camera-equipped smartphones. The Company has gededmd deployed Mobile Deposit , a software apfiio that allows users to
remotely deposit a check using their smartphoneecan©ther mobile applications developed and degulogclude Mobile Photo Bill Pay™, a
mobile bill paying application that allows userspy their bills using their smartphone camera, MoBalance Transfer ™, a credit card
shopping application that allows a user to tranafeexisting balance by capturing an image of thairent statement, Mobile ACH
Enrollment™, an application that enables consurtzeesiroll their checking accounts as funding sasifoe mobile payments by taking photos
of blank checks with their smartphones, Mobile Reié¥, a receipt archival and expense report apgtinaMobile Phax® , a mobile document
faxing application using the Company’s proprietgaghnology, and Mobile Imaging Cloud™, a mobile gimg platform that allows users to
capture, extract and route information containeddouments and can be used to create camera-badele applications.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements are prepared under thenEial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) AccougtiStandards Codification
(“ASC”) Topic 105-10,Generally Accepted Accounting Principl@&AAP”), in accordance with accounting principlgenerally accepted in
the U.S.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifienform to the current period presentation.sEheclassifications do not impact
reported net loss and do not have a material impathe presentation of the overall financial steats.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith GAAP requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenyperses and related disclosure of contingent aasdttiabilities. On an ongoing basis,
management reviews its estimates based upon clyreaailable information. Actual results could @iffmaterially from those estimates.

Earnings (Loss) Per Share

The Company calculates net income (loss) per shaaecordance with ASC Topic 26Barnings Per ShareBasic net income (loss) per
share is based on the weighted average numbenohoo shares outstanding during the period. Diluteidincome per share also gives effect
to all potential dilutive common shares outstandingng the period, such as convertible debt, mstiovarrants and restricted stock units, if
dilutive. At September 30, 2011 and 2010, respebtjthere were outstanding stock options to aexj553,904 and 4,534,328 shares of the
Company’s common stock, respectively, which werdweded from this calculation, as they would haverbantidilutive. Outstanding warrants
to acquire 132,189 and 895,283 shares of the
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Company’s common stock at September 30, 2011 ah@, 28spectively, were excluded from this calcolatias they would reduce net loss per
share. In addition, 300,000 restricted stock umise excluded from this calculation as they woldgtehbeen antidilutive. There were no
restricted stock units awarded in fiscal 2010.

The computation of basic and diluted loss per sisaas follows:

Twelve months ended

September 3(
2011 2010

Net loss $ (125,05) $ (682,35)
Weightec-average common shares and share equivalents alitg}l—basic 21,506,50. 16,946,26
Effect of dilutive stock option — —
Weightec-average common shares and share equivalents alitel—diluted 21,506,50. 16,946,26
Earnings (loss) per shal

Basic $ (0.0)) $ (0.0
Diluted $ (0.01) $ (0.09

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from sales of software licenses sold thraliigect and indirect channels are recognized ghgpment of the related product, if
the requirements of ASC Topic 985-6@nftware Revenue RecognitiBASC 985-605"),including evidence of an arrangement, deliveryed
or determinable fee, collectability or vendor sfie@mbjective evidence (“VSOE"about the fair value of an element are met. Ifrdwirement
of ASC 985-605, are not met at the date of shipprentnue is not recognized until such element&maogn or resolved. Customer support
services, or maintenance revenues, include postamirsupport and the rights to unspecified upggadel enhancements. VSOE of fair value
for customer support is determined by referenadbeqrice the customer pays for such element whlkehseparately; that is, the renewal rates
offered to customers. In those instances when tiageand reliable evidence of fair value existstfo undelivered items but not for the
delivered items, the residual method is used txrate the arrangement consideration. Under thduakimethod, the amount of arrangement
consideration allocated to the delivered items kgl total arrangement consideration less theeggde fair value of the undelivered items.
Revenue from post-contract customer support isgized ratably over the term of the contract. Reeefnom professional services is
recognized when such services are delivered areptext by the customer. When a software sales anamgt requires professional services
related to significant production, modificationarstomization of software, or when a customer aersiprofessional services essential to the
functionality of the software product, revenuedsagnized based on predetermined milestone obgsctaquired to complete the project as
those milestone objectives are deemed to be sulvgtam relationship to the work performed. Any exped losses on contracts in progress are
recorded in the period in which the losses becorobgble and reasonably estimable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are defined as highlidlftnancial instruments with original maturitie6three months or less. A substantial
portion of the Company'’s cash is deposited with fimancial institutions. The Company monitors tirahcial condition of these financial
institutions and it does not believe that fundsieposit are subject to a significant degree of risk

Investments

Investments consist of U.S. Treasury and U.S. gowent agency securities, corporate notes and bands;ommercial paper.
Management classifies investments as availabledt#-at the time of purchase and reevaluates dassiftcation as of each balance sheet date.
All investments are recorded at estimated fair @alu
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Unrealized gains and losses for available-for-sataurities are included in accumulated other colrgrsive income, a component of
stockholders’ equity. The Company evaluates itegtiments to assess whether those with unrealizslusitions are other than temporarily
impaired. Impairments are considered to be othar tamporary if they are related to deteriorationredit risk or if it is likely that the
Company will sell the securities before the recgwrtheir cost basis. Realized gains and lossdglaclines in value judged to be other than
temporary are determined based on the specifidifad@tion method and are reported in other incdeense), net in the statements of
income.

All investments whose maturity or sale is expecetétlin one year are classified as “current” on bia¢gance sheet. All other securities are
classified as “long-term” on the balance sheet.

Fair Value Measurements

The carrying amount of cash equivalents, investmextcounts receivable, accounts payable and aticened liabilities are considered
representative of their respective fair values beeaf the short-term nature of those instruments.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Aot

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at thenmeice value and are not interest bearing. The Gomgonsiders receivables past due
based on the contractual payment terms. The allogvéor doubtful accounts reflects the Company’s bemate for probable losses inherent
in accounts receivable balances. Management detesntiie allowance based on known troubled accohistsyical experience and other
currently available evidence.

Deferred Maintenance Fees

Deferred maintenance fees consist of capitalizetscassociated with software maintenance feestpaiendors who supply licenses and
maintenance for software embedded in the Compamgducts that it sells to customers. These softwamtenance fees are typically billed
annually to the Company and are amortized to Costwenue-maintenance and professional serviciés Btatements of Operations over the
maintenance period, which is typically one year.

Inventories
Inventories primarily consisting of media storagwides are recorded at the lower of cost or market.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are carried at cost. Foligus a summary of property and equipment as ofebaper 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Property and equipme—at cost:
Equipment $ 855,88: $ 651,52!
Furniture and fixture 143,70: 143,70:
Leasehold improvemen 49,30( 49,30(
1,048,88. 844,52¢
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortize (852,369 (810,23)
Total property and equipment, r $ 196,51¢ $ 34,29:
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Depreciation and amortization of property and emgpt are provided using the straight-line methoer @stimated useful lives ranging
from three to five years. Leasehold improvemengsaanortized over the shorter of the life of theskear seven years. Depreciation and
amortization of property and equipment totaled apipnately $42,000 and $36,000 for the fiscal yearded September 30, 2011 and 2010,
respectively. Expenditures for repairs and maimeaare charged to operations. Total repairs andtemance expenses were approximately
$43,000 and $30,000 for the fiscal years endedeBdper 30, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Long-Lived Assets

The Company evaluates the carrying value of longdiassets, including license agreements and imtfaggible assets, when events and
circumstances indicate that these assets may tergdpor whether any revision to the related amation periods should be made. This
evaluation is based on management’s projectiotiseofindiscounted future cash flows associated @dtth product or asset. If management’s
evaluation were to indicate that the carrying valokthese intangible assets were impaired, thaimment to be recognized is measured by the
amount by which the carrying amount of the asseteeds the fair value of the assets. The Compahyati record any impairment for the
fiscal years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue represents customer billings, giétiér upfront or annually at the beginning oftebdling period, with revenue
recognized ratably over the billing coverage perfeatr certain other licensing arrangements, revattugutable to undelivered elements,
including post-contract customer support whichagily includes telephone support and the righetmeive unspecified upgrades and
enhancements of software on a when-and-if-availlbh$s, is based upon the sales price of thosesalsnwhen sold separately and is
recognized ratably on a straight-line basis overtéim of the agreement.

Capitalized Software Development Costs

The Company evaluates its capitalized software Idpweent costs at each balance sheet date to deterhthe unamortized balance
related to any given product exceeds the estimagédealizable value of that product. Any such szde written off through accelerated
amortization in the quarter it is identified. Det@ning net realizable value, as defined by ASC €g85-20 Accounting for the Costs of
Software to Be Sold, Leased or Otherwise Markg#8C 985-20"), requires making estimates and judgts in quantifying the appropriate
amount to write off, if any. Actual amounts reatiZiezom the software products could differ from ta@stimates. Also, any future changes to
the Company’s product portfolio could result inrsfgcant increases to its cost of license reversia eesult of the write-off of capitalized
software development costs. The Company complé&dist production general release of ImageNet Mdbeposit in October 2008, and
entered into an agreement with a major financigtitation in November 2008 to conduct a performaeealuation of the product. In
accordance with ASC 985-20, the Company ceasethdiajpig software development costs related to pinégluct on the date that it completed
its first production general release.

In June 2009, the Company began to recognize revigam the sale of ImageNe@Mobile Deposit, at which time it started amortizithg
capitalized software development costs associattdtiae product in accordance with ASC 985-20. UniiBC 98520, the annual amortizati
shall be the greater of the amount computed usijthé ratio that current gross revenues for aymrbblear to the total of current and
anticipated future gross revenues for that produ¢b) the straight-line method over the remairgstimated economic life of the product,
including the period on which the Company is reiportThe Company determined it was appropriateriortize the related capitalized
software development costs over the remaining ananbife of the product, estimated to be three gedihe Company recorded amortizatiot
software development costs of approximately $13¥f00 each of the fiscal years ended Septembe2@0D] and 2010, respectively. The
Company records amortization of software develogroests as cost of revenue-software in the stateofesperations.
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Guarantees

In the ordinary course of business, the Compampisubject to potential obligations under guarasithat fall within the scope of ASC
Topic 460,Guaranteeg“ASC 460”), except for standard indemnificatiordamarranty provisions that are contained within gnahthe
Company’s customer license and service agreemadtsextain supplier agreements, and give rise tntile disclosure requirements
prescribed by ASC 460. Indemnification and warrgmiyvisions contained within the Company’s custotivense and service agreements and
certain supplier agreements are generally consistiéim those prevalent in the Company’s industrige TCompany has not historically incurred
significant obligations under customer indemnificator warranty provisions and does not expechtuii significant obligations in the future.
Accordingly, the Company does not maintain accrt@ipotential customer indemnification or warrangjated obligations.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbe=FASB ASC Topic 740income Taxe§'ASC 740"). Deferred tax assets and
liabilities arise from temporary differences betweke tax bases of assets and liabilities and tepwrted amounts in the financial statements
that will result in taxable or deductible amoumtguture years.

Management evaluates the available evidence abtureftaxable income and other possible sourcesatization of deferred tax assets.
The valuation allowance reduces deferred tax assets amount that represents management’s basiagstof the amount of such deferred tax
assets that more likely than not will be realizéde Note 5.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company records stock-based compensation ordemace with FASB ASC Topic 718ompensation-Stock Compensat{thSC
718"), formerly Statement of Financial Accountingu®dards (“SFAS”) No. 123 (Rghare-Based Payment¥he Company estimates the fair
value of stock options using the BlaBkcholes option pricing model. The fair value ofcétoptions granted is recognized as an expensetios
requisite service period. Stock-based compensatipense for all share-based payment awards ismexsfjusing the straight-line single-
option method.

The Black-Scholes model requires subjective assiomgtincluding future stock price volatility anggected time to exercise, which
greatly affect the calculated values. The expetdad of options granted is derived from historidata on employee exercises and post-vesting
employment termination behavior. The risk-free stected to value any particular grant is basetheJ.S. Treasury rate that corresponds to
the expected life of the grant effective as ofdate of the grant. The expected volatility is basedhe historical volatility of the Company’s
stock price. These factors could change in thedytaffecting the determination of stock-based cemspgtion expense in future periods.

Advertising Expense

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred antktbpproximately $76,000 and $40,000 during tteeyended September 30, 2011,
and 2010, respectively.

Research and Development
Research and development costs are expensedpefioe incurred.

Leases

Leases are reviewed and classified as capital @ratipng at their inception. For leases that contaim escalations, the Company records
the total rent payable on a straight-line basig dive term of the lease. The difference betweehpayments and straight-line rent expense is
recorded in deferred rent.

F-11



Table of Contents

Segment Reporting

FASB ASC Topic 280Segment Reportingrequires the use of a management approach itifigag segments of an enterprise. The
Company’s family of products consists of mobile gimay solutions and intelligent character recognitsoftware provided as development
toolkits. During the fiscal year ended September2811, management has determined that the Contengnly one operating segment,
document image processing and image analyticsdlasés product and service offerings that useeMg intelligent character recognition and
document capture technology.

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss angr attmprehensive loss. The Company has disclosegretensive loss as a
component of stockholders’ equity. Accumulated otwmprehensive loss on the balance sheet at Sbetedf, 2011 includes net unrealized
losses on the Company’s available-for-sale seesrittaling $9,855. At September 30, 2010, theme we differences between net loss and
comprehensive loss and, accordingly, no amounts haen reflected in the accompanying financiakstants.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU 2011-64jr Value Measurement (Topic 820): Amendmentsctieve Common Fair Value
Measurement and Disclosure Requirem¢(*ASU 2011-04") in GAAP and International FinancRéporting Standards (“IFRS”). Under ASU
201104, the guidance amends certain accounting antbdige requirements related to fair value measunésite ensure that fair value has
same meaning in GAAP and in IFRS and that thepieetive fair value measurement and disclosure reménts are the same. ASU 2004Lis
effective for public entities during interim andraral periods beginning after December 15, 201 1lyEatoption by public entities is not
permitted. The Company does not believe that tloptaoh of this guidance will have a material impantthe financial statements.

In June 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011@&mnprehensive Income (ASC Topic 220): Presentati@omprehensive Income
(*ASU 2011-05"), which amends current comprehengia®me guidance. This accounting update elimingte®ption to present the
components of other comprehensive income as pdnedaftatement of stockholders’ equity. Insteatifiea must report comprehensive income
in either a single continuous statement of comprsive income, which contains two sections, netiime@nd other comprehensive income, or
in two separate but consecutive statements. ASU-281will be effective for public companies duringtimterim and annual periods beginn
after December 15, 2011 with early adoption pesditlThe Company does not believe that the adopfitims guidance will have a material
impact on the financial statements.

2. INVESTMENTS
The following table summarizes investments by sectype:

As of September 30, 2011

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Market
Cost Gains Losses Value

Available-for-sale securities

Corporate debt securities, st-term $10,195,48 $ — $ (7,849 $10,187,63

Corporate debt securities, Ic-term 419,23¢ — (2,006 417,23(
Total $10,614,72. $ — $ (9,855 $10,604,86

The cost of securities sold is based on the spddiéintification method. Amortization of premiunagcretion of discounts, interest,
dividend income and realized gains and lossesnafteded in investment income. There were no redlgagns or losses on the Company’s
investments in the fiscal years ended Septembe2@®0, and 2010. As of September 30, 2010, the Coyng@ not hold any investments.
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The Company determines the appropriate designafiotvestments at the time of purchase and re-etesusuch designation as of each
balance sheet date. All of the Company’s investsemre designated as available-for-sale debt s&=urAs of September 30, 2011, the
Company’s short-term investments have original miggtdates of greater than 90 days and less tharyear. The Company’s long-term
investments have original maturity dates of gretitan one year. As of September 30, 2011, theraignaturity dates of our long-term
investments were 13 months.

Available-for-sale marketable securities are cdreefair value as determined by quoted markeegrfor identical or similar assets, with
unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, and rep@s a separate component of stockholders’ eddapagement reviews the fair value of the
portfolio at least monthly, and evaluates individsecurities with fair value below amortized costhe balance sheet date. For debt securities,
in order to determine whether impairment is othanttemporary, management must conclude wheth&dh®pany intends to sell the impai
security and whether it is more likely than notttthee Company will be required to sell the secuboigfore recovering its amortized cost basis. If
management intends to sell an impaired debt sgawrit is more likely than not the Company will beguired to sell the security prior to
recovering its amortized cost basis, an other-teamporary impairment is deemed to have occurred.drhount of an other-than-temporary
impairment related to a credit loss, or securitied management intends to sell before recovengdggnized in earnings. The amount of an
other-than-temporary impairment on debt securiiédated to other factors is recorded consistertt alitanges in the fair value of all other
available-for-sale securities as a component akstolders’ equity in other comprehensive income.dtfeer-than-temporary impairment
charges were recognized in the fiscal year endeteS8wder 30, 2011.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC 820 defines fair value, establishes a framev@rkneasuring fair value under GAAP and enhangedabures about fair value
measurements. Fair value is defined under ASC 828eaexchange price that would be received fasset or paid to transfer a liability (an
exit price) in the principal or most advantageowshat for the asset or liability in an orderly tsaation between market participants on the
measurement date. Valuation techniques used toureetesr value under ASC 820 must maximize theafsgbservable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs. ASC 820 descrilfals @alue hierarchy based on three levels of iapaf which the first two are considered
observable and the last unobservable, that magée to measure fair value which are the following:

* Level I—Quoted prices in active markets for identical assefiabilities;

» Level 2—Inputs other than Level 1 that are obsdejadither directly or indirectly, such as quoteitgs for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are active; or other inputs that are observable orlmnorroborated by observable
market data for substantially the full term of tesets or liabilities; ar

* Level =—Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@market activity and that are significant to thie value of the asse
or liabilities.

The following table represents the fair value hielg for the Company’s short-term investments messat fair value on a recurring
basis as of September 30, 2011:

Level 1 Level 2 Level & Total
Shor-term investments
Corporate debt securiti $— $10,187,63 $— $10,187,63
Long-term investments
Corporate debt securitir $— $  417,23( $— $  417,23(
Total $— $10,604,86 $— $10,604,86
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3. DEBT
Convertible Debt

In December 2009, the Company entered into a sexigurchase agreement with accredited investmsupnt to which the Company
agreed to issue in exchange for aggregate consimteiat approximately $1,000,000 the following seties: (i) 5% senior secured convertible
debentures in the principal amount of approxima$dlyp00,000, and (ii) warrants to purchase an aggeeof 337,501 shares of the Company’s
common stock with an exercise price of $0.91 pareshEach investor received a warrant to purchegenumber of shares of the Company’s
common stock that equals 25% of the quotient obthlwy dividing such investor's aggregate subsaipédmount by $0.75. The transaction
resulted in proceeds to the Company of approxim#&®22,000, net of transaction costs and expenses.

In December 2010, the Company converted the thistanding balance of the debentures of approxim&®l064,000, including accru
interest of approximately $51,000, into 1,418,5[&rss of the Company’s common stock at a convemioe of $0.75 per share. In addition,
the Company recognized as interest expense themaganamortized discount of approximately $320,068lated to the beneficial conversion
feature at the time of conversion in accordanck WASB ASC Topic 470-2@ebt with Conversion and Other Options

Prior to the conversion, interest was payable shaa stock at the rate of 5% per annum on eachersion date (as to the principal
amount being converted), on each early redemptda @s to the principal amount being redeemed)arttie maturity date. The principal
amount of the debentures, if not paid earlier, daes and payable on December 10, 2011. The Compahthle right to redeem all or a portion
of the debentures before maturity by payment ith @dghe outstanding principal amount plus accraled unpaid interest being redeemed. The
Company agreed to honor any notices of conversianit received from the holder before the dateGbenpany paid off the debentures. The
debentures were convertible into shares of the Goryip common stock at any time at the discretion otiblder at a conversion price of $0
per share, subject to adjustment for stock sgitsck dividends and the like. The Company haditite to force conversion of the debentures if
(i) the closing price of its common stock exceed88% of the then-effective conversion price fort2@ling days out of a consecutive 30
trading day period or (ii) the average daily trapirolume for its common stock exceeded 100,000eshaer trading day for 20 trading days out
of a consecutive 30 trading day period and theirfpgrice of its common stock exceeded 100% othlea-effective conversion price for 20
trading days out of a consecutive 30 trading dajodeThe debentures imposed certain covenanta@@ompany including restrictions aga
paying cash dividends or distributions on shardssajutstanding common stock. The debentures s&sared by all of the Company’s assets
under the terms of a security agreement it entetedvith the investors dated December 10, 2009.

In evaluating the accounting for the convertiblea@gures, the Company considered whether the csioveoption related to the
convertible debentures required bifurcation andisste accounting as a liability at fair value. Bessathe conversion option entitled the holder
to convert to a fixed number of shares at a fixadep the Company was not required to bifurcatecthreversion option and the related debt
host. Similarly, the warrant contract entitled ttedder to convert to a fixed number of sharesfateal price and was therefore recorded in
stockholders’ equity.

Of the gross proceeds, approximately $786,000 Wasated to the debentures and approximately $2@560 the warrants. The value of
the warrants was estimated using a Black-Scholgsropaluation model. The amount allocated to tlaerants was recorded as a discount on
the debentures and was being amortized to intergginse over the term of the debentures. In additased on the conversion price of $0.75
and relative value of the debentures, a beneficalersion feature of approximately $402,000 wasnaded as an additional discount on the
debentures and was being amortized to interestnsepi@ the accompanying statements of operatioastbe term of the debentures.
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The fair value of the vested warrants was estimatethe grant date using the Black-Scholes optadnation model with the following
assumptions:

Risk-free interest rat 2.1%%
Expected term (in year 5

Stock price volatility 207%
Expected dividend yiel 0%

Credit Facility

In January 2011, the Company entered into a lodrsanurity agreement with its primary operatingkbdrhe loan agreement
permits the Company to borrow, repay, and re-boyfoam time to time until January 31, 2013, up 498,000 subject to the terms and
conditions of the agreement. The Company’s obligetiunder the loan agreement are secured by dtgentarest in its equipment and other
personal property. Interest on the credit fac#itgrues at an annual rate equal to one percentéigiegpove the Prime Rate, fixed on the dal
each advance. Interest on the outstanding amouetruhe loan agreement is payable monthly. The &mgeement contains customary
covenants for credit facilities of this type, inding limitations on the disposition of assets, neesgand reorganizations. The Company is also
obligated to meet certain financial covenants uildeidoan agreement, including minimum liquiditgy fvhich the Company was in compliar
as of September 30, 2011. The Company had no asoutgtanding under this credit facility as of $epber 30, 2011.

4. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock

In October 2010, the Company sold 500,000 sharesrmofnon stock at $1.50 per share to accreditedstov®in a private placement,
resulting in net proceeds of $750,000.

In December 2010, the Company issued 1,418,57&sléicommon stock upon the conversion of outstandonvertible debentures as
discussed in greater detail in Note 3 to the figrstatements included in this Annual Report omir@0-K (“Form 10-K”).

In May 2011, the Company entered into a securniigshase agreement with certain accredited invegtarsuant to which, the Company
sold to the investors an aggregate of 2,857,14&shad the Compang’common stock at a purchase price of $5.25 pee $banaggregate gro
proceeds of $15,000,000. The Company paid cash easagion of approximately $1,050,000 in placemgenafees and reimbursed $25,000
of placement agent out-of-pocket expenses incumrednnection with the financing. In addition, t8empany incurred legal fees of
approximately $80,000 in connection with the prévptacement, resulting in net proceeds of approain&13,845,000.

Warrants

Historically, the Company has granted warrantsuiecipase its common stock to service providers awelstors. As of September 30,
2011, the Company had warrants to purchase 1321&®s of its common stock outstanding, all of Wwiiiad an exercise price of $0.91 per
share, subject to adjustment for stock splits,kstbizidends and the like. These warrants expil@ésember 2014.

In connection with the issuance of shares of comatook to John H. Harland Company (“JHH Co.”) irbReary and May 2005, the
Company issued warrants to purchase 321,428 sbatles Company’s common stock at an exercise @fic®.70 per share, subject to
adjustment for stock splits, stock dividends arellike. In June 2011, JHH Co. exercised the wastamhich were due to expire between
February and May 2012. The warrants were exercise@r the cashless exercise method, resultingeifrsuance of 288,582 shares of
common stock to the warrant holder and the canta@ilaf the remaining 32,846 shares in considenatibthe issuance. See Note 7 to the
financial statements included in this Form 10-K.
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In connection with issuance of convertible debezgun December 2009, the Company issued warrapisrthiase an aggregate of
337,501 shares of the Company’s common stock wittxarcise price of $0.91 per share as discussgebater detail in Note 3 to the financial
statements included in this Form 10-K. Of such waats, warrants to purchase 205,312 shares of thgp&uy’'s common stock have been
exercised and warrants to purchase 132,189 shacesnmon stock remain outstanding as of Septembe2@L1. These warrants expire in
December 2014.

The following table summarizes warrant activityttie fiscal year ended September 30, 2011:

Number Weightedaverag
of warrant: exercise prict
Oustanding and exercisable at September 30, 895,28 $ 0.84
Issuec —
Exercisec (763,099 $ 0.8:
Expired —
Oustanding and exercisable at September 30, 132,18¢ $ 0.91

Stock-based Compensation
The Company applies the fair value recognition mions of ASC 718.

The fair value of stock options granted to empleyaed directors is calculated using the Black-Sehoption pricing model. The Black-
Scholes model requires subjective assumptiongydivaly future stock price volatility and expectemdito exercise, which greatly affect the
calculated values. The expected term of optionstgchis derived from historical data on employeereises and post-vesting employment
termination behavior. The risk-free rate selectedalue any particular grant is based on the Ur8adury rate that corresponds to the expected
life of the grant effective as of the date of thiard. The expected volatility is based on the histd volatility of the Company’s stock price.
These factors could change in the future, affediegdetermination of stock-based compensationresg future periods.

The value of stock-based compensation is baseleosimgle option valuation approach under ASC Rli8.assumed no dividends will
be declared. The estimated fair value of stock-thasenpensation awards to employees and directarsdstized using the straighite methoc
over the vesting period of the options. The estita@&xpected remaining contractual life of stockapgrants at September 30, 2011 was
approximately 1.2 years on grants to directors@bd/ears on grants to employees.

ASC 718 requires forfeitures to be estimated atithe of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsetperiods if actual forfeitures differ
from those estimates. The estimated average foréeitite for the fiscal year ended September 301 2 approximately 13.33% for all stock
option grants was based on historical forfeiturpegience.

ASC 718 requires the cash flows resulting fromtthebenefits resulting from tax deductions in esocefsthe compensation cost
recognized for those options to be classified manfting cash flows. Due to the Company’s valuagitmwance from losses in the previous
years, there were no such tax benefits duringitivalfyears ended September 30, 2011 and 201@&atesgly. Prior to the adoption of ASC 7
those benefits would have been reported as opgradish flows had the Company received any tax ismefated to stock option exercises.
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The fair value calculations for stock-based comptos awards to employees for the fiscal years eéi®kptember 30, 2011 and 2010
were based on the following assumptions:

2011 2010
Risk-free interest rat 0.26%-2.26% 0.32%-2.58%
Expected life (years 55 5.3
Expected volatility 193% 213%
Expected dividend None None

The following table summarizes stock-based compgemsaxpense related to stock options and resttisteck unit awards under ASC
718 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 26812610, which were allocated as follows:

2011 2010
Sales and marketing $ 235,71( $ 68,227
Research and developmt 290,23¢ 99,49¢
General and administrati\ 745,28 238,54«
Stoclk-based compensation expense related to employdettions

included in operating expens $1,271,23! $406,26¢

The following table summarizes vested and unvespidns, weighted average exercise price per sharighted average remaining term

and aggregate intrinsic value at September 30,:2011

Weighted Averag

Weighted Averag Remaining
Exercise Price P Contractual Life Aggregate Intrinsi
Number of Shar¢ Share (in Years) Value
Vested 3,129,961 $ 0.62 4.9¢ $ 26,337,73
Unvestec 1,423,93! $ 2.3¢ 8.71 9,774,96.
Total 4,553,90: $ 1.1¢ 6.1 $ 36,112,69

As of September 30, 2011, the Company had $4,683R8nrecognized compensation expense expectee tecognized over a
weighted average period of approximately 4 years.

The following table summarizes stock option acgivinder the Company’s stock option plans duringfigeal years ended September 30,

2011 and 2010:

Weighted Averag

Weighted Averag

Exercise Price P Remaining
Number of Contractual Tern
Shares Share (in Years)
Oustanding, September 30, 2009 3,533,00! $ 0.5¢ 6.1C
Granted 1,270,501 $ 0.9t
Exercisec (161,177 $ 0.3¢€
Cancellec (108,000 $ 1.22
Oustanding, September 30, 2( 4,534,32! $ 0.6¢€ 6.21
Granted 976,53: $ 3.7C
Exercisec (942,639 $ 0.5¢
Cancellec (14,319 $ 0.57
Oustanding, September 30, 2( 4,553,90: $ 1.34 6.1t
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The following table summarizes significant rangéewstanding and exercisable options as of Septe®®, 2011:

Weighted Weighted
Average Weightec Average
RemainingA Exercise Price (
Number of Contractual Lif Average Number of Number of
Range of Options Exercise Exercisable Exercisable Unvested
Exercise Price Outstanding (in Years) Price Options Options Options
$0.07 - $0.09 545,22¢ 6.12 $0.09 452,69 $0.09 92,52¢
$0.35- $0.70 964,64« 4.84 $0.43 952,97 $0.42 11,67
$0.72- $0.80 1,029,66: 6.78 $0.79 677,19: $0.79 352,46¢
$0.82- $1.95 1,080,56: 451 $1.19 875,95¢ $1.14 204,60!
$2.32- $12.37 933,80¢ 8.72 $3.79 171,141 $3.69 762,66:
4,553,90: 6.15 $1.34 3,129,96! $0.83 1,423,93

The total intrinsic value of options exercised dgrthe year ended September 30, 2011 was $4,731,68%er-share weighted average
fair value of options granted during the year en8edtember 30, 2011 was $3.54.

Restricted Stock Units

In January 2011, the Company’s board of directdogpted, subject to stockholder approval, the MBgktems, Inc. Director Restricted
Stock Unit Plan, as amended and restated (the ¢@iré’lan”), reserving up to 1,000,000 shares efGompany’s common stock for the
issuance of restricted stock units to both emplamEnonemployee members of the board of directors of the@any. On February 23, 20!
the Director Plan was approved by the Company’'sk$tolders at its annual meeting.

On March 15, 2011, the Company awarded an aggre§&@0,000 restricted stock units to its directatra fair value of $5.12 per share.
The restricted stock units vest monthly over fieags. To the extent a restricted stock unit becarasted, and subject to satisfaction of any
withholding obligations, each vested restrictectlstonit will entitle its holder to receive one sbaf the Company’s common stock, which will
be settled and deemed issued and outstanding hparatlier to occur of: (i) a change in contra), didirector’'s separation from service or
(iii) the fifth anniversary of the award date. Alther of outstanding restricted stock units has rafrt@e rights and privileges of a stockholde
the Company, including no right to vote or to reeailividends (if any) until such time the awards settled in shares of common stock.

The cost of the restricted stock units is deterchinging the fair value of the Company’s commonlstmt the award date, and the
compensation expense is recognized ratably overasing period. In the fiscal year ended SepterBbe011, the Company recognized
approximately $179,000 in stock-based compensatipense related to the outstanding restricted stoitk. There was no such expense
recognized in the fiscal year ended September@®0).2As of September 30, 2011, the Company hadajpately $1,357,000 of
unrecognized compensation expense related to adistarestricted stock units expected to be recghover a weighted average period of
approximately 4.5 years. There were 700,000 sharaiéable for grant under the Director Plan aset8mber 30, 2011.

Stock Option Plans

The Company currently has stock option plans thaivethe Company to grant options to purchase comstock to the Company’s
directors, executive officers and key individualsonmake, or are expected to make significant doutions to the Company. The Company
granted stock options to purchase 976,531 shariés @fmmon stock during the year ended Septenbe2@®L1, all of which were granted
pursuant to the Company’s available stock opti@mgl The Company also currently maintains two stgtion plans, the 1999 Stock Option
Plan and the 2000 Stock Option Plan that have ngtiutstanding that were previously granted unden plans but under which no further
options may be granted.
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Under the terms of the 2002 Stock Option Plan20@6 Stock Option Plan, and the 2010 Stock Optian,Reach of which provides for
the grant of incentive and non-qualified optiorsir(centive stock options are granted with an eiser price equal to the fair market value of
the Company’s common stock at the grant date and ferm of not more than 10 years; (ii) non-quedifstock options may be granted with an
exercise price of not less than 85% of fair mavdtie of the Company’s common stock at the gratd dad for a term of not more than five
years; and (iii) the exercise price of options ¢edrto persons owning more than 10% of the totallined voting power of the Compe’s
stock is not to be less than 110% of the fair miavkéue of the Company’s common stock as determamethe date of the grant of the options.
To date, the Company has elected to grant nonfopehtock options under these plans with a these yerm.

The 1999 Plan provides for the purchase of up@0d,000 shares of the Compasigommon stock. The 1999 Plan terminated on Juy
2009; however options granted under the plan tleséwutstanding at such date remain in effect sntih options are exercised or expire. #
September 30, 2011, options to purchase 490,25@sbathe Company’s common stock were outstanaithno options were available for
grant under the 1999 Plan.

The 2000 Plan, which terminated on December 130 20rbvided for the purchase of up to 1,000,000eshaf the Company’s common
stock. As of September 30, 2011, options to purelad®,612 shares of the Company’s common stock agstanding and no options were
available for grant under the 2000 Plan.

The 2002 Plan provides for the purchase of up@0d,000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Aeptember 30, 2011, options to
purchase 571,959 shares of the Company’s commak stere outstanding and options to purchase ugSoshares of the Compasycommol
stock were available for grant under the 2002 Plan.

In May 2003, the Chief Executive Officer of the Quemy was granted an option to purchase up to 40GB@ares of the Company’s
common stock in connection with his appointmenPessident and Chief Executive Officer. This graaswnade without shareholder approval
as an inducement award pursuant to Rule 5635(0j#)e NASDAQ Listing Rules.

The 2006 Plan provides for the purchase of up@6d,P00 shares of the Company’s common stock. Aeptember 30, 2011, options to
purchase 766,216 shares of the Company’s commak gtere outstanding and options to purchase uf@f@oshares of the Compasytommot
stock were available for grant under the 2006 Plan.

The 2010 Plan provides for the purchase of up@6@000 shares of the Company’s common stock. Aeptember 30, 2011, options to
purchase 1,748,867 shares of the Company’s comtook were outstanding and options to purchase 331shares of the Company’s
common stock were available for grant under thedZ@ian.

5. INCOME TAXES

The Company has adopted ASC 740, which clarifiesattcounting for uncertainty in income taxes reg@eghin a company'’s financial
statements and prescribes a recognition thresimaldreeasurement attribute for the financial statemegognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a taxmeturther, ASC 740 gives guidance regardingdisegnition of a tax position based on a
“more likely than not” recognition threshold; that evaluating whether it is more likely than nwattthe position would be sustained upon
examination by the appropriate taxing authoritiEsed on the technical merits of the position. dtheption of ASC 740 did not impact the
Company'’s financial condition, results of operati@m cash flows.

The Company had no activity related to unrecogntagcenefits during the year ended September(BL .2
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For the fiscal years ended September 30, 2011 @bd the provisions for income taxes were as foltows

2011 2010
Federe—current $ — $ —
State—current 2,492 2,33¢
Total $2,49: $2,33¢

Under ASC 740, deferred income tax assets anditiabireflect the net tax effects of temporaryfeliénces between the carrying amoi
of assets and liabilities for financial reportingrposes and the amounts used for income tax puspose

Significant components of the Company’s net detetax assets and liabilities as of September 301 20d 2010 are as follows:

2011 2010
Deferred tax assets (liabilities
Net operating loss carryforwar $ 6,031,001 $ 6,045,001
Capitalized research and development c 519,00( 683,00(
Stock based compensati 281,00( 108,00(
Prepaid License Fel 51,00( 97,00(
AMT credit carryforward: 71,00( 69,00(
Other 86,00( 68,00(
Research credit carryforwar 58,00( 44,00(
Total deferred asse 7,097,001 7,114,001
Valuation allowance for net deferred tax as: (7,097,000 (7,114,000
Total $ — $ —

The Company has provided a valuation allowancenagdieferred tax assets recorded as of Septemb2030 and 2010 due to
uncertainties regarding the realization of sucketsss

The net change in the total valuation allowancdtieryear ended September 30, 2011 was a decreagproximately $17,000. The net
change in the total valuation allowance for therymaled September 30, 2010 was a decrease of apateky $122,000. In assessing the
realizability of deferred tax assets, the Compammys@ers whether it is more likely than not thahegortion or all of the deferred tax assets
will not be realized. The ultimate realization @ferred tax assets is dependent upon the genetdtfature taxable income during periods in
which those temporary differences become deducfitiie Company considers projected future taxaldenre and planning strategies in
making this assessment. Based on the level ofrldatmperating results and projections for theatd® income for the future, the Company has
determined that it is more likely than not that tlederred tax assets will not be realized. Accagljinthe Company has recorded a valuation
allowance to reduce deferred tax assets to zemreltan be no assurance that the Company willlevable to realize the benefit of some o
of the federal and state loss carryforwards orctiedit carryforwards, either due to ongoing opegtosses or due to ownership changes, w
limit the usefulness of the loss carryforwards.

As of September 30, 2011, the Company has avaitaileperating loss carryforwards of approximaglg,400,000 for federal income
tax purposes, which will start to expire in 2018€Thet operating loss carryforwards for state psgp@re approximately $8,100,000 and begar
to expire in the current year. As of September2Bd,1, the Company has available federal reseamidevelopment credit carryforwards of
approximately $29,000 and alternative minimum teedit carryforwards of approximately $71,000. Thegarch and development credits will
start to expire in 2023. As of September 30, 284 Company has available California research aveldpment credit carryforwards and
manufacturers’ investment credit carryforwards mraximately $22,000 respectively. The state reteand development credits have no
expiration date and the state manufacturers’ imrest credits will start to expire in 2012.
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The difference between the provision for incomeetaand income taxes computed using the U.S. femea@he tax rate was as follows
for the years ended September 30, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
Amount computed using statutory ri $(43,000) $(232,00()
Net change in valuation allowance for net defeteedasset (18,000 (122,000
Non-deductible item: 1,00( 187,00(
Other (19,000 175,00(
State income ta 79,00( (8,000
State tax expens 2,492 2,33¢
Provision for income taxe $ 2,497 $ 2,33

6. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Legal Matters

In the ordinary course of business, the Compaiay isnes subject to various legal proceedings. Mamaent is not aware of any legal
proceedings or claims that it believes may hawdiyidually or in the aggregate, a material adveffect on the Company’s business, financial
condition, operating results, cash flows or ligtyidi

Employee 401(k) Plan

The Company has a 401(k) plan that allows partizigeemployees to contribute a percentage of sedary, subject to IRS annual limits.
The Companys board of directors may, at its sole discretigprave matching contributions by the Company. Dgifiacal 2011 and 2010, ti
Company’s board of directors did not approve angnffany matching contributions to the plan.

Facility Lease

The Company’s principal executive office, as welita research and development facility, is locéteah office building in San Diego,
California that the Company leases under a nonedahle operating lease. The lease costs are exgppensa straight-line basis over the lease
term. The term of the lease on this facility comgeghin December 2005 and expires in December 2@ &bruary 2009, the lease was
amended to allow the Company to defer the paymiebd% of the basic rent due for the months of Fabrthrough September 2009. The
Company repaid the deferred rent with interesharanual rate of 6% in equal monthly installmergsdgen October 2009 and March 2010. In
addition, in connection with the February 2009 admeant, the Company waived its right to exerciseany termination option. In September
2009, the lease was further amended to reducentbara of office space subject to the lease by 1stR@re feet from 15,927 square feet to
14,205 square feet, which reduced the Companyis bast proportionately starting in December 20D8e base monthly rent for the facility in
fiscal 2011 under this lease is approximately $26,d’he base monthly rent increases every twelveatinsdoy approximately 3%.

Future annual minimum rental payments payable utigelease are as follows:

Years ending September :

2012 313,22(
2013 52,55¢
2014 and thereafte —

Total $365,77¢
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Rent expense for the Company’s operating leasisf@acility for the years ended September 30, 28id 2010 totaled approximately
$288,000 and $293,000, respectively.

7. RELATED PARTIES

John H. Harland Company (“JHH Co.") made investraémthe Company in February and May 2005. JHHaequired a total of
2,142,856 shares of the Company’s unregistered amstock for an aggregate purchase price of $108000r $0.70 per share. As part of the
acquisition of shares, JHH Co. received warranfautgchase 321,428 additional shares of common stb$R.70 per share. This transaction
resulted in JHH Co. and its subsidiary, HarlandaRial Solutions (collectively “John Harland”), hgiconsidered related parties of the
Company due to the amount of the Company’s comrntmok beneficially owned by John Harland. John Hadllaas not been involved in the
management decisions of the Company and does rtatipate in any board meetings, unless invited.

On May 16, 2011, John Harland sold its 2,142,8%6eshof the Company’s common stock. As a resuti@flisposition, John Harland
ceased to be beneficial owner of more than fivegmrof the Company’s common stock and thus, i®nger considered a related party. On
June 3, 2011, John Harland exercised warrantsrithpse 321,428 shares of the Company’s common,s&dg&h it subsequently sold on
June 10, 2011.

The Company recognized revenues for software nrane from John Harland of approximately $58,00D%80,000 for the fiscal ye:
ended September 30, 2011 and 2010, respectiveyeras an outstanding accounts receivable bathreéom John Harland of
approximately $4,000 at both September 30, 20112840.

8. REVENUE AND VENDOR CONCENTRATIONS
Revenue Concentration

Revenue from customers of which revenues were éesxof 10% of total revenue were approximatel@&3000 and $1,678,000,
respectively, and totaled approximately 33% ofltoggenue for each of the fiscal years ended Sdme30, 2011 and 2010. The correspon
accounts receivable balances were approximatel®,$88 and $580,000 at September 30, 2011 and 284iikctively.

The Company'’s revenue is derived primarily from shaée by the Company to channel partners, inclusiyisgems integrators and
resellers, and end-users of licenses to sell ptsduovered by the Company’s patented technologiesse contractual arrangements do not
obligate the Company’s channel partners to ordechase or distribute any fixed or minimum quaesitof the Company’s products. In most
cases, the channel partners purchase the licesrsetlie Company after they receive an order froraratruser. The channel partners receive
orders from various individual end-users, so the efa license to a channel partner may represaat to multiple end-users. End-users can
purchase the Company’s products through more tharcbannel partner.

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2011, tiep@ny recorded 11% of its revenues from a direstaznmer and 22% from a channel
partner. For the fiscal year ended September 310,28e Company recorded 12%, 11% and 10% ofvsmges from three different channel
partners. Revenues can fluctuate based on thegiafiicense renewals by channel partners. Whdmartel partner purchases or renews a
license, the Company receives a license fee inideration for the grant of a license to sell then(pany’s products and there are no future
payment obligations related to such agreementetbes the license fee the Company receives witha@so a particular license renewal in one
period does not have a correlation with revenuetire periods. During most quarterly periods stél year 2011 and 2010, sales of licens
one or two channel partners have comprised a ggnif part of our revenue. This is attributabléhte timing of renewals or purchases of
licenses and does not represent a dependence amarghannel partner. The Company believes tignidt dependent on any single channel
partner, even those from which revenues were iegxof 10% of
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the Company’s total revenue in a specific reporpegod, and the loss or termination of the Comfmrslationship with any such channel
partner would not have a material adverse effeédherCompany’s future operations.

International sales accounted for approximately B2 10% of the Company’s total revenue for thealigears ended September 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company sellsrdducts in U.S. currency only.

Vendor Concentration

The Company purchases its integrated software coergs from multiple third-party software providatscompetitive prices. The
Company had purchases from one vendor that conapaisproximately 13% and 14% of total purchasesteryears ended September 30,
2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company is undesbtigation to purchase from any one vendor. Tom@any has entered into contractual
relationships with some of its vendors; howeveesthagreements do not contain binding obligationsither party and either party may
terminate the agreement at any time. The Compaaeg dot believe it is substantially dependent upamenposed to any significant
concentration risk related to purchases from anysofendors, given the availability of alternats@urces for its necessary integrated software
components.
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Exhibit 10.8
INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

THIS INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (“Agreementi$ made by and between Mitek Systems, Inc., avilsia
corporation, (the “Corporation”), and James B. DiéBghe “Optionee”).

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual bigne be derived herefrom, the Corporation andi@ee agree as follows:

1. Grant of Option The Corporation hereby grants to Optionee, stilhjeall the terms and provisions of the Mitek ®ys$, Inc. 2002
Stock Option Plan dated November 13, 2002, as Blathmay be hereinafter amended, a copy of whieltégshed hereto and incorporated
herein by this reference (the “Plan”), the rightyilege and option (“Option”) to purchase 400,08ares of its common stock (“Stock”) at
$1.32 per share, in the manner and subject todhditions provided hereinafter and in the Plan amg amendments thereto and any rules and
regulations thereunder.

2. Time of Exercise of OptionThe Option shall vest in Optionee and may beciged by Optionee monthly as to 1/36th of the Oyio
granted hereunder. Any exercise may be with respeanty part or all of the shares then exercispbtsuant to such Option, provided that the
minimum number of shares exercisable at any tina#l abt be less than 100 shares or the balanceawés for which the Option is then
exercisable. Such Option must be exercised witignetarlier of (i) 10 years (5 years for 10% shaldgrs as defined in the Plan) after the date
of the grant, or (ii) except as set forth in Settd2.2 of the Plan, 3 months after the occurrei@n event giving rise to Optionaeterminatiol
of employment with either the Corporation, or adpdor Subsidiary thereof; provided, however, stghts shall be extended as more fully set
forth in Section 3.3 of the Plan in the case ofi@me’s death. In no event shall the Corporationdogiired to transfer fractional shares to
Optionee or those entitled to Optionee’s righteher

3. Change of Control Vestindf during the first 90 days of Optionee’s emplogmh, there is a “Change of Control” of the Corpionmat
33.3% or 133,334 of the shares exercisable pursaanich Option shall immediately vest. If afteg first 90 days of Optionee’s employment,
there is a “Change of Control” of the Corporatiat of the shares exercisable pursuant to sucho@sthall immediately vest. For purposes of
this Agreement, “Change of Control” means (1) ageerconsolidation, or reorganization involving tberporation, where the shareholders of
the Corporation as of the date hereof have lessdhaajority of the equity ownership of the resigtmerged or consolidated company; or (2) a
sale of all or substantially all of the assetshef Corporation, where the shareholders of the Gatjpm as of the date hereof have less than a
majority of the equity ownership of the buyer o€tklassets.

4. Method of Exercis.. The Option shall be exercised by Optionee afostt in Sections 5.4 and 5.5 of the PI




5. Restrictions on Exercise and Delivefffhe exercise of each Option shall be subjedteacbndition that, if at any time the Committee
shall determine, in its sole and absolute discnetio

(@)
(b)
(©)

the satisfaction of any withholding tax or athéthholding liabilities, is necessary or desimbks a condition of, or in
connection with, such exercise or the deliveryuncpase of Stock pursuant there

the listing, registration, or qualification of aslares deliverable upon such exercise is desicalsiecessary, under any st
or federal law, as a condition of, or in connectiath, such exercise or the delivery or purchasshaires pursuant thereto,

the consent or approval of any regulatory bodyeisassary or desirable as a condition of, or in eofion with, such exerci:
or the delivery or purchase of shares pursuanéetbg

then in any such event, such exercise shall neffieetive unless such withholding, listing, regisiton, qualification, consent or approval shall
have been effected or obtained free of any comtititot acceptable to the Committee. Optionee sleltute such documents and take such
other actions as are required by the Committe@adble it to effect or obtain such withholding, iligt, registration, qualification, consent or
approval. Neither the Corporation nor any officedwector, or member of the Committee, shall hamg liability with respect to the non-
issuance or failure to sell shares as the resw@hgfsuspensions of exercisability imposed pursteatitis Section.

6. Termination of Option Except as otherwise provided in this AgreemernherPlan, to the extent not previously exercisieel Option

shall terminate upon the first to occur of anyhadf following events:

(@)
(b)

(©
(d)

()
(f)

the dissolution or liquidation of the Corporatic

The expiration of 10 years (5 years for 10%rshalders as defined in the Plan) from the dath®fyrant of the Option
hereunder

the breach by Optionee of any provision of thiseament

as more fully set forth in Section 3.2.1 of #lan, 3 months after the occurrence of an evemgrise to termination of
employment other than f¢caus/;

as more fully set forth in Section 3.2.2 of therRlapon or as of the occurrence of an event givisgto termination ¢
employment fo’“caus(’;

as more fully set forth in Section 3.3 of the Plamonths after an optior’s death; o
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(@) as more fully set forth in Section 6.2 of the Planthe event of a Capital Transactis

7. Nonassignability Options may not be sold, pledged, assigned osteared in any manner other than by will or by léngs of descent
and distribution, and may be exercised during ifleéire of Optionee only by Optionee. Any trandigrOptionee of any Option granted under
the Plan or this Agreement shall void such Optiod the Corporation shall have no further obligatigth respect to such Option. No Option
shall be pledged or hypothecated in any way, nall siny Option be subject to execution, attachneergimilar process.

8. Restrictions on Transfer of Shares Acquir@ptionee represents and warrants to the Corpor#tiat he will not transfer the Stock in
violation of the provisions of any applicable setes statute or regulation.

9. Representation LettetJpon execution of this Agreement, the Optionel deliver to the Corporation the grant represeatatetter se
forth on Exhibit “A” of the Plan, as such Exhibitajmnbe amended by the Committee from time to tinporexercise of the Option, the
Optionee will deliver to the Corporation the exeeciepresentation letter set forth on Exhibit “Bttee Plan, as such Exhibit may be amended
by the Committee from time to time. Optionee algeeas to make such other representations as amedasecessary or appropriate by the
Corporation and its counsel.

10. Rights as ShareholdeNeither Optionee nor his executor, administrateirs or legatees, shall be, or have any rightgieileges of i
shareholder of the Corporation in respect of tfeelStinless and until certificates representing sticitk shall have been issued in Optionee’s
name.

11. No Right of EmploymentNeither the grant nor exercise of any Optionamoything in the Plan or this Agreement shall impagen
the Corporation or any other corporation any obiayato employ or continue to employ any OptionEee right of the Corporation and any
other corporation to terminate any employee shatlbe diminished or affected because an Optiorbkas granted to such employee.

12. Mandatory Arbitration In the event of any dispute between the Corpamadind Optionee regarding this Agreement or tha, Riee
dispute and any issue as to the arbitrability ehstdispute, shall be settled to the exclusion adwat of law, by arbitration in San Diego,
California, by a panel of three arbitrators (eaahtyshall choose one arbitrator and the thirdldl@thosen by the two arbitrators so selected)
in accordance with the Commercial Arbitration Rudéshe American Arbitration Association then ifegtt. The decision of a majority of the
arbitrators shall be final and binding upon thetipar All costs of the arbitration and the feeshaf arbitrators shall be allocated between the
parties as determined by a majority of the artotitit being the intention of the parties that phevailing party in such a proceeding be made
whole with respect to its expenses.

13. Definitions. Capitalized terms shall have the meaning sel fiorthe Plan unless otherwise defined herein.
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14. Notices Any notice to be given under the terms of thisegment shall be addressed to the Corporationrenafdts Secretary at its
principal office, and any notice to be given to iDpee shall be addressed to such Optionee at thresgimaintained by the Corporation for
such person or at such other address as the Ogtinag specify in writing to the Corporation.

15. Binding Effect This Agreement shall be binding upon and inurth&éobenefit of Optionee, his heirs and successois of the
Corporation, its successors and assigns.

16. Governing Law This Agreement shall be governed by the law$ef3tate of California.

17. Descriptive HeadingsTitles to Sections are solely for information posges.

18. Application of Plan The Corporation has delivered and the Optioneeltyeacknowledges receipt of a copy of the Plar gérties
agree and acknowledge that the Option granted hdegus granted pursuant to the Plan and subjebetterms and provisions thereof, and the
rights of the Optionee are subject to modificatiand termination in certain events as provided@Rlan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement is effectivecfisand the date of grant shall be, May 19, 2003.

MITEK SYSTEMS, INC., a Delaware corporati

/s/ John M. Thorntc
John M. Thornton, Chairman of the Bo:

OPTIONEE

/s/ James B. DeBel
James B. DeBell




AMENDMENT TO STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT

THIS AMENDMENT TO STOCK OPTION AGREEMENT (“Amendm#® is made by and between Mitek Systems, Inc.etaldare
corporation, (the “Corporation”), and James B. DiéBghe “Optionee”).

WHEREAS, on May 19, 2003, as part of Optionee’sahcompensation arrangement at the time of higidpi Optionee was granted an
option to purchase 400,000 shares of common stbitiedCorporation, par value $0.001 per share (“Gam Stock”), at an exercise price of
$1.06 per share (as reflected in Optionee’s preslofiied Form 4), pursuant to that certain InceatStock Option Agreement, dated as of such
date, by and between the Corporation and Opticthee"QOption Agreement”);

WHEREAS, due to clear administrative error, thegbwal Option Agreement incorrectly reflected thargrof an incentive stock option
agreement and an exercise price of $1.32; and

WHEREAS, the board of directors of the Corporatias determined to amend and restate the OptioneAgget to correct such errors in
the Option Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual bigne be derived herefrom, the Corporation andi@ye agree as follows:

19. Amendments to Option Agreement

(@  Any references t*“Incentive Stock Option Agreem¢’ in the Option Agreement shall be replaced withwioeds” Stock
Option Agreemen”

(b)  The reference to $1.32 in Section 1 of the Optigme&ment is amended by replacing such referente$4i06.

20. CounterpartsThis Amendment may be executed in any numbeoohterparts (including by facsimile), each of whéttall be an
original and all of which shall constitute one ahd same document.

21. Interpretation The term “Agreement” as used in the Option Agreetishall be deemed to refer to the Option Agre¢mg@amended
hereby.

22. Severability If any term, provision, covenant or restrictidittis Amendment is held by a court of competenisgliction or other
authority to be invalid, void or unenforceable, teenainder of the terms, provisions, covenantsrasttictions of this Amendment, and of the
Option Agreement, shall remain in full force anteef and shall in no way be affected, impairednealidated.

23. Governing Law This Amendment shall be governed by the law$efState of California.
[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment is effectivechiecember 15, 2011.

MITEK SYSTEMS, INC., a Delaware corporati

/s/ John M. Thorntc

John M. Thornton, Chairman of the Bo:

OPTIONEE

/s/ James B. DeBel

James B. DeBell



Exhibit 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

As independent registered public accountants, weblyeconsent to the incorporation by referencedgi8ration Statement Nos. 333-80567,
333-58032, 333-106843, 333-133765, 333-172810 886132811 on Form 8-of our report dated December 15, 2011, relatnthpé financia

statements of Mitek Systems, Inc. as of and foydar ended September 30, 2011, included in thisuAhReport on Form 10-K for the year
ended September 30, 2011.

/s/ Mayer Hoffman McCann P.C.
San Diego, Californi
December 15, 201




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) adopted pursuant to Séoh 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, James B. DeBello, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Mitek Systems, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduties tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, is made known to us theod within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this rep@teing preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or cause such internal control over finanoéglorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the registre's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@yspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: December 15, 20: /s/ James B. DeBell
James B. DeBello, Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) adopted pursuant to Séoh 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Russell C. Clark, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Forn-K of Mitek Systems, Inc.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or améttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circunt&ts under which such statements were made, nk#adisg with respect to the period
covered by this repor

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamts,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operat and cash flows of the registrant as of, andtfe periods presented in this rep

4.  The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainiisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules
13&15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hay

(@) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregused such disclosure controls and proceduties tiesigned under o
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, is made known to us theod within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this rep@teing preparec

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr or cause such internal control over finanoéglorting to be designed unc
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atite preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting princip

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presenttsi report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls andgulures, as of the end of the period coveredibyéport based on such
evaluation; ant

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regid’s internal control over financial reporting thatomed during the registre's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fodiikbal quarter in the case of an annual repo#) tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regast’ s internal control over financial reporting; e

5.  The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anldave disclosed, based on our most recent evafuat internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmnmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@yspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regid’s ability to record, process, summarize and refpmhcial information; ant

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a signifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reportin

Date: December 15, 20: /s/ Russell C. Clar
Russell C. Clark, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATIONS
PURSUANT TO SECTION 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Each of the undersigned, in his capacity as thecjpal executive officer and principal financiafioér of Mitek Systems, Inc. (the
“Company”), as the case may be, hereby certifiessyant to the requirement set forth in Rule 13@)df the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”) and Sect@&® bf Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United Sta@esle (18 U.S.C. §1350), that, to the
best of his knowledge:

1.  This Annual Report on Form 10-K for the periodied January 1, 2011 (this “Annual Report”) fulyneplies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act;

2. Theinformation contained in this Annual Reportlfapresents, in all material respects, the finahcondition and results of operations
the Company for the period covered by this Annugpéit.

Date: December 15, 20: /s/ James B. DeBell
James B. DeBell
Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: December 15, 20: /s/ Russell C. Clar
Russell C. Clarl
Chief Financial Office!
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office

A signed original of this written statement reqditey Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2082 been provided to the Company and
will be retained by the Company and furnished ® $ecurities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) osté$f upon request.

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K tocthit relates, is not deemed filed with the SEC Bnabt to be incorporated by reference
into any filing of the Company under the Securittes of 1933, as amended, or the Exchange Act (mdrahade before or after the date of this
Annual Report), irrespective of any general incogbion language contained in such filir



